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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Hong Kong Finance Group Limited, | am
pleased to present to you our first annual results and business review
of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2014. This is the first annual
results announcement of our Group since the listing of the Shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 2 October 2013.

SUCCESSFUL LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE
The year ended 31 March 2014 was a significant and strategically
meaningful year for the development of our Group. During the year,
the Company marked a new milestone in its development history by
obtaining an official listing on the Stock Exchange. Even though the
then stock market in Hong Kong was highly volatile and unfavourable,
the Company managed to obtain remarkable results by receiving over-
subscription from our public offer at 413 times and totally raising fund of
HK$99.5 million (net of listing expenses) for our business expansion. It
represents the well-known recognition of the international capital market
for our Company as a successful market player operating under the
money lenders license in property mortgage business.

WELL-KNOWN AND WELL-ESTABLISHED MARKET
PLAYER IN PROPERTY MORTGAGE

Established in 1996, our Group is the first Hong Kong-based listed
company principally and primarily focusing on money lending business
of providing secured property mortgage loans to our customers, with
our principal operating subsidiary, operating as a licensed money lender
which is regulated under the Money Lenders Ordinance in Hong Kong.
Our management team has been working with us for more than ten years
and has extensive experience and knowledge in money lending business,
credit management and real estate investments in Hong Kong. According
to the research conducted by Euromonitor International, we ranked tenth
in the licensed money lending industry in Hong Kong and had market
share of 1.2% in terms of the estimated total amount of loan receivables
of the year 2012. We manage to meet our customers’ financial needs
on simple security requirements and quick approval procedures, and
to cater the needs of different customers. With the strong demand on
property mortgage, the Group has recorded promising financial results
for the current financial year.

4 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited E#&EE&£EERALA

AR

RAANEBREREBEEEEERAAESTE  MA
M BTE2ERAEEEZ2014F3A31HILFE
MENEFEENERLOE EREAEEBER
MDH2013F10 A2 FEB R ATEIR ETARME
MEFEENMH -

DR F £
HE201453A31 AL FERASERRER S
EZAABBERN—F - RAFE - ARAE
REBRFEL LT RAARAERL EWHE
125 REENEBRTALND  mRAE
ARANELERRRE T RS BERBA13EN
REMRAE - A& %% H99,500,0008 7T (F1K £
FX)IEEBIER - B EARBAREARRE
“ESEYERBHISTRERY - GHERE
ARTTIB H9 R

FERYERBENE  RERRBEA

AEBMI1996FKY  eEEE B LT RAE
DREIRERFPREFSERIZBERORE
2% VERMNEIZLEMNBARATREA
BORE - EEBEEEBNIFEREA - &M
MEBBBRASERGETF @ EHEBHME
2% CEEEMEHERE T EAEALEEER
K 505% - AB4EEuromonitor International¥#17 &9
% R hET RN E AT 201 2F RIMESE S
BERETETRERET  MHEHER1.2% - &K
PIABEMERRERLRENELRFARP
REVERBER  REHMOPEEE  ig
FETREFOBFENIRERE - ARYER
BRFRSY  REBRATBRFESRBEENE
TREELE o



Chairman’s Statement

EFRE|ES

PROMISING FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, despite the intense market
competition, our property mortgage loan portfolio continued to grow, due
to the persisting high demand on mortgage loan products in the market,
and the confidence from our customers on our products and services.
All the listing proceeds of HK$99.5 million have been fully utilised, in
accordance with the purpose as stated in our Prospectus, for expanding
our mortgage loan portfolio in providing more loans to existing customers
and extending loans to new customers. In addition, our substantial
Shareholder continued to show significant confidence and support on
both the property mortgage loan business and our Group. In November
2013 and January 2014, our substantial Shareholder has, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary and with better commercial terms to us where
no security over our Group’s assets was granted in respect of such,
entered into agreements with our Group to provide standby loan facility
for the amount up to HK$80.0 million in aggregate for the expansion of
our property mortgage business.

In light of the above, and with our competitive strengths as stated above,
we have generated record-high financial results. We recorded an increase
in our mortgage loan portfolio of 47.6% from HK$316.8 million as at
31 March 2013 to HK$467.7 million as at 31 March 2014. Our interest
income derived from our property mortgage loan portfolio surged up
to HK$81.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2014, as compared to
HK$66.4 million for the corresponding year, representing an increase
of 22.3%. Our net profit attributable to our Shareholders increased
by 13.1% from HK$35.8 million to HK$40.5 million. Should the non-
operating items in respect of fair value gains on revaluation of investment
properties and listing expenses be excluded, the adjusted net profit
attributable to our Shareholders would increase by 29.3% from HK$33.4
million to HK$43.2 million. The basic earnings per share amounted to
HK11.4 cents as compared to HK11.9 cents for last year.

To reward and thank our Shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK2.8 cents per share.
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRESE

CHALLENGING PROPERTY MARKET CREATES
BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

With tight control on authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong and
stringent policy on the property market imposed by the Government,
the property market has shrunk in transaction numbers over the past
few months. It has brought both challenges and business opportunities
to our Group. We are of the view that despite keen and intense market
competition, the market demand for mortgage loan products will continue
to grow. Nevertheless, given the uncertainties of the property market,
we have already adopted a more conservative approach on our credit
assessment when granting and renewing loans to our customers, and
performed more intensive credit reviews on our loan portfolio so as
to minimise the default risk from our customers. We believe that with
our long-established and well-known brand “Hong Kong Finance”, we
are in our strategic position to capture the business opportunities and
market shares of the property mortgage loan markets. We will continue
to provide high-quality and tailor-made property mortgage loan products
and services to our customers to meet with their short-term financial
needs. We have already spent and will continue to channel more
resources and effort in advertising and enhancing our brand image and
awareness, and to promote our products and services. We will also
actively look for different financing resources for our business expansion.
We are confident in our growth of interest income which will create sound
financial results and performance to our Shareholders and stakeholders
in the years to come.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere and heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders for their unwavering support to our Group,
especially during our initial public offering in September 2013. | would
also like to express my appreciation to the management and all of our
employees for their long-standing loyalty, diligence and contributions to
the success of our Group over the past years which helped us achieve
our fruitful results. We will enhance our performance to the best of our
ability and to build and produce a more promising result and great
business expansion in a brighter future.

Chan Kwong Yin William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWNE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since the successful listing of our Shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, our Group has been proactively expanding our money lending
business in providing property mortgage loans in Hong Kong to our
customers.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, our property mortgage loan
portfolio continued to grow, due to the persisting high demand on
mortgage loan products in the market, recording an increase of 47.6%
from HK$316.8 million as at 31 March 2013 to HK$467.7 million as at
31 March 2014. Our interest income derived from our property mortgage
loan portfolio also surged up to HK$81.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2014, as compared to HK$66.4 million for the corresponding
year, representing an increase of 22.3%. During the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2013, we had no bad and doubtful debts from our loans
receivable and interest receivables.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, we have continued to put
much effort and financial resources on our advertising and marketing
campaigns, among which the most significant included the sponsorship
of television drama and programmes during the television prime time,
and the appointment of artistes to be the spokesman of our Company.
We consider that these campaigns can efficiently promote our brand,
our loan products and services to the public and increase our market
share in the money lending business of providing property mortgage
loans in Hong Kong. The effectiveness of our marketing campaigns has
been reflected on the growth on our money lending business of providing
property mortgage loans in Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our interest income from money lending business of providing property
mortgage loans increased by HK$14.8 million or 22.3% from HK$66.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2013 to HK$81.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2014. Such increase was primarily due to the increase in
average month-end balance of mortgage loans receivable. As discussed
above, due to the increasing demand for mortgage loan products in the
money lending market, our average month-end balance of aggregate
mortgage loans receivable increased by HK$87.1 million or 29.8% from
HK$292.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2013 to HK$379.4 million
for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWE DN

Other income

Our Group’s other income mainly represents the rental income received
from leasing of our investment properties which increased by HK$0.2
million or 10.0% from HK$2.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2013
to HK$2.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2014,

Administrative expenses

We incurred administrative expenses of HK$31.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2014 whereas the amount of HK$5.0 million was listing
expenses in relation to the initial public offer of our Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange which was considered as a non-operating
and non-recurring expense. Should the listing expenses be excluded,
our administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2014 would
be HK$26.8 million, which was HK$7.7 million or 40.3% higher than
the administrative expenses of HK$19.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2013 (as adjusted after excluding the listing expenses of HK$5.5
million). Such increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in our
Group’s employee benefit expenses, as a result of the increment of salary
expenses to our staff members; and (ii) the increase in our advertising and
marketing expenses, resulted from the sponsorship of television drama
and programmes during the television prime time, and the appointment of
artiste to be the spokesman of our Company, as mentioned above.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by HK$3.3 million or 34.7% from HK$9.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2013 to HK$6.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2014. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease of the
interest expenses on bank borrowings and on the amount due to a fellow
subsidiary of our Company.

Net interest margin

The net interest margin of our property mortgage loans increased from
19.6% for the year ended 31 March 2013 to 19.8% for the year ended
31 March 2014. The decrease of our cost of finance led to a higher net
interest margin accordingly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWNE DN

Profit and total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing, our profit and total comprehensive income for
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 achieved HK$40.5 million and
HK$35.8 million respectively. Should the non-operating fair value gains
on revaluation of investment properties and listing expenses, be excluded
in both years, the adjusted profit and total comprehensive income for the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 would have achieved HK$43.2
million and HK$33.4 million respectively, representing an increase of
29.3%.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, our Group’s operations and
capital requirements were financed principally through retained earnings,
loans or advances from our controlling Shareholder through a fellow
subsidiary of our Group, borrowings from banks, and the net proceeds
from the listing of Shares on the Listing Date in which, as disclosed in
our Prospectus, all these proceeds have been utilised for the expansion
of our mortgage loan portfolio. As at 30 September 2013, the unaudited
loans receivable amounted to HK$327.0 million which has been
increased by HK$140.7 million to HK$467.7 million as at 31 March 2014,

Based on our current and anticipated levels of operations, barring
unforeseen market conditions, our future operations and capital
requirements will be financed through loans from banks or financial
institutions that are independent third parties, the advances from our
controlling Shareholder, through a fellow subsidiary of our Group,
and retained earnings and our share capital. We had no significant
commitments for capital expenditure during the year ended 31 March
2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the cash and cash equivalent amounted to
HK$0.9 million (31 March 2013: HK$2.6 million); the amount due to
a fellow subsidiary amounted to HK$39.0 million (31 March 2013:
HK$15.7 million); and the interest-bearing bank borrowings amounted to
HK$179.1 million (31 March 2013: HK$183.8 million).

As at 31 March 2014, all interest-bearing bank borrowings were
repayable on demand and were secured by (i) our Group’s investment
properties and land and buildings, and (ii) by corporate guarantee
executed by our Company. The amount due to a fellow subsidiary was
unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate plus 1.75% per annum and with
fixed term of repayment.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, none of our banking facilities
were subject to any covenants relating to financial ratio requirements or
any material covenants that restrict our Group to undertake additional
debt or equity financing. As at 31 March 2014, our unutilised banking
facilities and other unutilised facility available to our Group for drawdown
amounted to HK$6.7 million and HK$41.0 million, respectively (2013:
HK$24.4 million and Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWE DN

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2014, the gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing
net debts (being the total interest-bearing bank borrowings and amount
due to a fellow subsidiary less cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits) by total equity, was 0.55 (2013: 0.80).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as the listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on Listing Date, our Group did not have any significant investments
held, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies for the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date of this
report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2014, our Group employed 18 full time employees. The
total employee benefit expenses (including directors’ emoluments) of our
Group for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 were HK$9.0 million
and HK$6.7 million, respectively.

Our Group relies on our remuneration policy on the position, duties and
performance of our employees. The remuneration of our employees may
include salary, overtime allowance, bonus and various subsidies. We
conduct performance appraisal on an annual basis. Our Company has
conditionally adopted the share option scheme on 4 September 2013
and the principal terms of the share option scheme are summarised
under the section headed “D. Share option scheme” in Appendix V to the
Prospectus. No options have been granted, exercised or lapsed under
this share option scheme since the listing of our Company’s share on the
Stock Exchange.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, our investment properties of HK$73.1 million and
our land and buildings of HK$62.3 million were secured for the Group’s
bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014, our Group had no material contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWNE DN

PROSPECTS

With tight control on authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong and
stringent policy on the property market imposed by the Hong Kong
Government, it has already been experienced that the property market
has shrunk in transaction numbers over the past few months. It has
brought both challenges and business opportunities to our Group.
We are of the view that despite keen and intense market competition,
the market demand for mortgage loan products will continue to grow.
Nevertheless, given the uncertainties of the property market, we have
already adopted a more conservative approach on our credit assessment
when granting and renewing loans to our customers, and performed
more intensive credit reviews on our loan portfolio so as to minimise the
default risk from our customers. We believe that with our long-established
and well-known brand “Hong Kong Finance”, we are in our strategic
position to capture the business opportunities and market shares of
the property mortgage loan markets. We will continue to provide high-
quality and tailor-made property mortgage loan products and services
to our customers to meet with their short-term financial needs. We have
already spent and will continue to channel more resources and effort
in advertising and enhancing our brand image and awareness, and to
promote our products and services. We will also actively look for different
financing resources for our business expansion. We are confident in our
growth of interest income which will create sound financial results and
performance to our Shareholders and stakeholders in the years to come.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The shares of our Company have been listed on the Stock Exchange with
effect from 2 October 2013 prior to the financial year ended 31 March
2014.

Our Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of our business and our Shareholders for enabling them to evaluate
how the principles of corporate governance have been applied. The
corporate governance principles of our Company emphasis a quality
board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
Shareholders.

Our Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) as set out under the CG Code, except that:

1. Although Code A.1.1 of the Code Provisions requires every listed
company should hold its regular board meetings at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals, only two regular Board
meetings were held at around quarterly intervals since our Company
was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date for about six months up to 31 March 2014. In fact, several
Board meetings had been held and various written resolutions of all
Directors had been passed since our Company’s incorporation on 6
February 2013 and up to 31 March 2014. Further, our Company had
held a regular Board meeting on 6 June 2014 to review and approve,
amongst other matters, the final financial results of our Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

2. Although Code A.2.7 of the Code Provisions requires the Chairman
of the Board should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the executive Directors
present, our Company has not held such meeting for the year ended
31 March 2014 since our company has just been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange for about six months from the Listing
Date. In the opinion of the Chairman of the Board, there was no
specific agenda item which required him to hold such a meeting
only with independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of executive Directors during the approximately six-month period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014. In fact, our Chairman had
held such a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of executive Directors on 6 June 2014 with the
appropriate agenda items for discussion.

In light of the above, the Directors consider that the above do not have
any material impact on the corporate governance of our Company during
the year under review.

The Directors will carry out a regular review on our Company’s corporate

governance policies and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to
ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, with a
variety and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business,
marketing, finance, investment and legal profession. The current
composition of the Board is as follows:

Directors

=

Exg

EFEHKE

EXCHATAARESMAN  BR=2HNTES
R=2BIFRNTES BREFFSHLNEE
BT RES WX 28 28K

BRAREX - EFGHREKBIENOT ¢

Membership of Board Committee(s)

ESZREERERE

Executive Directors:
HITES .
Mr. Chan Koung Nam

BRyCRISEE
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman)

BRCBSEE(EE)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)

IR B (TTHAREL)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
BRIKER SE £

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry

Rkt

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
REIB ST HE

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William and the Chief

Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Tse Pui To. The roles of the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer are separate and
exercised by different individuals.

Our Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules that the board contains at least three independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the board, and at
least one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The

independent non-executive Directors have dedicated to provide our

Company with professional advice with respect to the steady operation
and development of our Company. They also exercised supervision

Member of Remuneration Committee
HFNEZEEKE

Chairman of Nomination Committee
REZEEERE

Chairman of Audit Committee
EZEEGXRE

Chairman of Remuneration Committee
FMEEEER

Member of Audit Committee
EZZEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee
REEEGKE

Member of Audit Committee
EREZBEEXE

Member of Remuneration Committee
FMEZEEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee

REZEBEXE

EX2XTFRARAELRLE  MARATRARR
AIBBEL - BEEEERERTBARZBE TN
B ATRALAE

o

ARFTBET LT R EI01) R Q) HERE

B10AMG  HAEEEEARAERL =ZRBIUF
WITES HEFENEBABELI =02 &

BE

AT

HPRL—RBUFATESTLRAABEENSE
XER  LABEENSTHARNYBTEESR
R -BIUNWPTESRNIAARAREEES
R BARAAIBELENEBR - RETIEHE
B Rin - AREAR QR RARE o

and coordination to safeguard interests of our Company and our

Shareholders.
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Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (independent non-executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit Committee) is regarded as the appropriate
person to fulfill such qualifications of having appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has confirmed in writing to our Company their independence in
particularly in regard to the requirements under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers that the independent non-executive Directors
are free from any business or other relationship that may influence their
exercise of independent judgement.

The operation of the board

The Board’s main task is to supervise and direct the management of
our Company to operate under good corporate governance in order to
maximise value of our Shareholders while balancing the interest of our
various stakeholders.

The Board holds meetings to monitor the performance of our Company
as against the budget and to be briefed with market developments, to
discuss and decide on major corporate, strategic and operational issues,
and to appraise any good investment opportunities available.

The major duties performed by our Board are as follows:

1. setting our Company’s values and standards, the objectives of
our Company and responsibilities of the Board and its various
committees;

2. establishing the strategic direction for our Company;

3. setting targets and monitoring the performance for the management
of our Group;

4. supervising the annual and interim results of our Group;

5. ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective internal control
is in place to assess and manage the risk of our Group and
implementing appropriate systems to manage these risks;

6. overseeing the relationships between our Company and our
shareholders, customers, the community, various government
authorities, interest groups and others who have a legitimate interest
in the responsible conduct of our Group’s business;

7. identifying and assessing any matters involving a conflict of interest
for a substantial Shareholder or a Director;

8. determining (if any and available) any material acquisitions and/or
disposals of assets, investments, capital, projects, authority levels,
major treasury policies, risk management policies and key human
resources issues; and

9. considering and determining issues which are the responsibilities of
the Board pursuant to our Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and the relevant laws and regulations in force by which
our Company is governed from time to time.
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The Board is also responsible for the following corporate governance
duties:

1. to develop and review our Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations on any
amendment or updating (if any);

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and our Company’s senior management;

3. to review and monitor our Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to our Company’s employees and
Directors;

5. to review our Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under the CG Code;
and

6. to be responsible for performing any other corporate governance
duties and functions set out in the CG Code and the Listing Rules
(as amended from time to time), or delegating the responsibility to a
committee or committees (if applicable).

For the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, the Board held

two regular meetings. The attendance of individual Directors at these
Board meetings is stated as follows:

Members of the Board

EEEmE
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Attendance/
Number of regular
Board meeting held
HEREER
EEEERETAY

Executive Directors:

HITES

Mr. Chan Koung Nam

R m ST

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman)
BRABFE(EE)

Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)
AIEB R (TTBEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYEHTES !

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
BRIKER £

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry

RieMS T

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong

REEEE

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2
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Our Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 February
2013. For the period from 6 February 2013 to 31 March 2014, no
general meeting of the members of our Company was held. Only written
resolutions of the then sole Shareholder of our Company had been
passed on 4 September 2013 to confirm and resolve matters regarding
application for the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 28 to 30 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed on those pages as set out above or
any pages in this annual report, the Board members do not have any
family, financial, business or other material/relevant relationship with each
other and in particular, between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer as disclosed therein.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions have been published
on the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange respectively
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment, re-election and removal of directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
our Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date and is renewable automatically for successive terms of three
years, and each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for an initial term of two years commencing from the Listing
Date and thereafter it may be extended for such period as he and our
Company may agree in writing. All Directors are subject to the retirement
by rotation and re-election of each of the Directors by our Company
at our annual general meeting pursuant to our Company’s Articles of
Association and the Listing Rules.

Training and support for directors

All Directors had received an induction on appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operation of our Group
and full awareness of director’s role, functions, duties and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. This
induction arrangement had been arranged and funded by our Company.

Briefings, reading materials and other training opportunities will be
provided and funded by our Company to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills so as to keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities and to emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
listed company director.

Our Company will also continuously update our Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices, and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Our Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions set out in the Model Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has
confirmed that he has complied with the Model Code throughout the
period since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
to oversee the relevant aspects of our Company’s affairs. The three
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee of our Company was established on 4 September
2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of Audit Committee include:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and other terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(c) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

(d) to monitor the integrity of our Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

(e) to review our Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

(f) to discuss the internal control system with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system;

(9) to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

(h) to review our Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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() to review our external auditor’'s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
response;

() to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

(k) to report to the Board on the matters set out above;

() to review arrangements employees of our Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters as well as our
whistleblowing policy;

(m) to act as the key representative body for overseeing our Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

(n) to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board from
time to time.

The Audit Committee discharges its responsibilities during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014 as follows in accordance with its
terms of reference:

1. reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the interim results and
financial statements of our Company and of our Group and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments;

2. reviewing and monitoring the reporting, accounting and financial
policies and practices of our Company;

3. reviewing the interim report of our Company; and
4. reviewing the connected transactions and discloseable transactions.

The existing members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. Chan Siu
Wing Raymond, Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong,
all of them are independent non-executive Directors who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.

For the period from Listing Date to 31 March 2014, one meeting of
the Audit Committee was held (with the attendance of our Company’s
external auditor in compliance with the Code Provisions and the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference), and all the members have attended this
meeting.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the contents of this annual report.
The Audit Committee has discussed with the management of our
Company the internal control and financial reporting matters including
the accounting principles and practices related to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.
It has also reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2014 with the management and the auditor of our
Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange respectively.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee of our Company is responsible for considering
the appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect to our Company. During the year
under review, our Group is required to pay to our external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCooopers, the audit service in relation to the audit of
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014 of HK$0.9 million and the non-audit service in relation to the review
of interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the period
ended 30 September 2013 of HK$0.2 million totalling HK$1.1 million in
aggregate.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee of our Company was established on 4
September 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on our Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in our Group;

(e) to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(f) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

(9) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration packages and
bonus of executive Directors and our Company’s senior management
in relation to the terms of their service agreements and letters of
appointment; and assessed the performance of executive Directors and
the Company’s senior management.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, the
Remuneration Committee has also adopted the model to determine
with delegated responsibility on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and the Company’s senior management.

The existing members of the Remuneration Committee include Mr. Chu
Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong, both are independent non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Chan Koung Nam, an executive Director.
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014, one meeting
of the Remuneration Committee was held and all members had attended
this meeting.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange respectively.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee of our Company was established on 4
September 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of Nomination Committee include:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement our Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The existing members of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Chu Yat
Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong, both are independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, an executive Director
and Chairman of the Board, acts as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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During the period from Listing Date to 31 March 2014, no meeting
of the Nomination Committee was held. However, subsequent to 31
March 2014, a meeting has been held on 6 June 2014 to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and review the
reappointment of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting as
well as our nomination policy.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange respectively.

Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy”, which requires
the Nomination Committee of our Company to review annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board for
achieving diversity to our Board members, so as to enhance the quality
of our performance. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee has considered a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience.

The Nomination Committee will consider all the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board as
selection criteria for potential candidate to the Board. The Company aims
to build and maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board that are considered beneficial to the Company.

For the period from the Listing date to 31 March 2014, our Company had
regularly reviewed the progress on achieving those objectives set out in
the board diversity policy above.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

Financial results of our Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of our Group on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of our Group’s financial affairs for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of our Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 41 to 42 of this annual report.
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Internal controls
The maintenance of a sound and effective internal control system in our
Group is important to safeguard our Shareholders’ investment and our
Company’s assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board had conducted a
review by our Company’s internal control advisor appointed by the Board,
RSM Nelson Wheeler Consulting Limited (“RSM”), of the effectiveness
of the internal control system of our Group. RSM had prepared the
internal control report for the year ended 31 March 2014 to the Board for
Directors’ review, which covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group.

The Board considers the internal control systems (including but not
limited to the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, its training
programmes and budget) is effective and adequate.

The Board holds full responsibility for the system of internal control of the
Group and will regularly and continuously, at least annually, through the
Audit Committee or by the Board itself, review its effectiveness from time
to time.

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. During the year of
2013, the Company has adopted the inside information policy which
aims to set out guidelines to the Group’s directors, officers and all
relevant employees to ensure inside information (as defined below) of the
Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner
in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

The term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group, because
of his office or employment, who is likely to be in possession of the
unpublished inside information (as defined below).

Under the new Part XIVA of the SFO, Chapter 571 (“Part XIVA”), inside
information is the specific information about the company, its shareholder
or officer or its listed securities or derivatives, which is not generally
known to the persons who are accustomed, or would be likely, to deal in
the company’s listed securities but would, if generally known to them, be
likely to materially affect the price of the company’s listed securities.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
Effective communication

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with our Shareholders and other
stakeholders and encouraging them to communicate actively with our
Company.

This policy sets out the principles of our Company in relation to
shareholders’ communications, with the objective of ensuring that
the communications with our Company’s shareholders and other
stakeholders (including potential investors) with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about our Company
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments, corporate governance and risk profile), in order to enable
our Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders to exercise their
rights in an informed manner mainly through our Company’s corporate
communications (such as interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars, notices of meetings, proxy forms and listing documents),
annual general meetings and other general meetings, as well as
disclosure on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of our Company
respectively.

Listing Documents such as Prospectus, announcements, interim reports,
annual reports and circulars and associated explanatory documents
etc are sent to our Shareholders and are also posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and of the Company
(www.hkfinance.hk) under a dedicated “Investor Relations” section
thereon as soon as practicable in plain language and in both English
and Chinese versions or where permitted, in single language, and will be
updated on a regular basis and in a timely manner.

Our Company’s website provides our Shareholders and other
stakeholders with the corporate information, such as principal business
activities, the development of corporate governance and the corporate
social responsibilities of our Group, etc.

The proceedings of general meeting are reviewed from time to time to
ensure that our Company follows good corporate governance practices.
Our Company’s annual general meeting shall be called by notice of not
less than twenty-one clear days and not less than twenty clear business
days. Any extraordinary general meeting of the Company at which the
passing of a special resolution is to be considered shall be called by
notice of not less than twenty-one clear days and not less than ten clear
business days. All other extraordinary general meetings of the Company
may be called by notice of not less than fourteen clear days and not less
than ten clear business days (whereas the notice shall be exclusive of
the day on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the day for
which it is given), together with the accompanying circular which also sets
out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Our Company’s general meeting allows our Directors, our members of
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees respectively and
our external auditor to meet and communicate with our Shareholders
and to answer Shareholders’ questions. Our Company will ensure that
our Shareholders’ views can be communicated to the Board. For each
substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a separate resolution
should be proposed by the chairman of that meeting, for instances,
nomination of persons as Directors by means of a separate resolution.

The “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as
a Director of the Company” has been uploaded on the website of our
Company under a dedicated “Corporate Governance” section of “Investor
Relations” section thereon.

The chairman of the general meeting exercises his power under our
Company'’s Articles of Association to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of a poll, save for the resolutions (if any) proposed by the
chairman of the meeting regarding the approval on the general meeting’s
procedural and administrative matters as defined in the Listing Rules will
be voted on show of hands.

The procedures for demanding and conducting a poll are explained at the
general meeting prior to the poll voting being taken. The Shareholders
who are entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting are entitled
to ask about the poll voting procedures and details of the proposed
resolutions at the general meeting whose questions should be answered
during the general meeting prior to the conduction of poll voting.
Announcement on poll voting results of general meeting will be posted on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Our Company continues to commit to a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and effective communication with our Shareholders
and analysts by maximising the use of our Company’s website
(www.hkfinance.hk) as a channel to disclose our Company’s updated
information and corporate communications to our Shareholders,
stakeholders and the public on a timely basis.

Shareholders’ rights

1. Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting
Pursuant to Article 58 of our Company’s Articles of Association,
our Company’s extraordinary general meetings shall be convened
on the requisition of any one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of our Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of our Company.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or our
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting of our Company to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by our
Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries about their shareholdings,
share transfer, registration and payment of dividend to our
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited:

Address Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Email . is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Tel : (852) 2980 1333
Fax : (852) 28108185

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of our Company in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follow:

Address Room 3410, 34th Floor,
Tower Two, Lippo Centre,
89 Queensway, Hong Kong

Email . ir@hkfinance.com.hk

Telephone :  (852) 2525 3535

Fax : (852) 2525 3534
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3. Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

26

(i)

(i)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a
Director:

Pursuant to Articles 83(2) and 85 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and the Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director of the Company, which had
been uploaded to our Company’s website, a Shareholder who
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting should
lodge:

(@) notice in writing signed by this Shareholder concerned of his/
her intention to propose that person for election as a Director
which must include the candidate’s personal particulars as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

notice in writing signed by that person to be proposed of
his/her willingness to be elected and consent to publish
his/her information on our Company’s announcement, to
be delivered to our Company’s head office in Hong Kong
at Room 3410, 34th Floor, Tower Two, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong, (For the attention of the Chairman
of the Board/Chief Executive Officer).

The period for lodgment of such notices mentioned above shall
commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than ten business days prior to the date of such general meeting
(i.e. within the period from Monday, 30 June 2014 to Friday,
11 July 2014, both days inclusive, as the Company’s notice of
annual general meeting will be dispatched on 27 June 2014 and
our Company’s annual general meeting will be held on 31 July
2014).

Requisition of convening extraordinary general meeting and
making proposals:

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of our
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of our Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of our Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of our
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and an EGM shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
an EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by our Company.
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The requisitionist(s) may deposit his/their requisition together
with the proposal (the “Proposal”) to be considered at the EGM
at the principal place of business of our Company at Unit 3410,
34th Floor, Tower I, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong or at any address notified by our Company from time
to time and for the attention of the Chairman of the Board and the
Company Secretary.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the requirements under the Articles of
Association to all the registered members. On the contrary, if the
requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, an EMG will not be convened as
requested.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the
Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less than
10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution in an EGM of the
Company.

(2) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less than
10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of an ordinary resolution in an EGM.

Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the then sole Shareholder passed on
4 September 2013, our Company’s Memorandum of Association was
amended and our Company’s new Articles of Association was adopted in
substitution for and to the exclusion of its previous Articles of Association
with effect from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 March 2014, there
was no significant change in the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of our Company.

QOur Company’s amended Memorandum of Association and our
Company’s new Articles of Association are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and of the Company respectively.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Koung Nam (B # ), aged 58, is our executive Director. He is
the brother of Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William and one of the founders of our
Group. He has over fifteen years of experience in money lending business
and is responsible for the strategic planning and overall development of
our Group.

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (BR ¥t &), aged 49, is our executive Director
and the Chairman. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and one
of the founders of our Group. He has over fifteen years of experience in
money lending business and is responsible for overseeing our Group’s
business operation and development as well as monitoring our Group’s
corporate strategy and administration. Mr. Chan also supervises the
formulation of our Group’s marketing strategy and the execution of the
relevant marketing programs.

Mr. Tse Pui To (#§1%38), aged 48, is our executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer who was appointed on 4 September 2013. Mr. Tse
joined our Group in December 2002 and is responsible for managing our
Group’s business operation with focus on our mortgage loan sales, after-
sales activities and other administrative functions. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Tse worked as and held senior positions in various financial
institutions such as The Sanwa Bank Limited, International Bank of Asia
Limited (now known as Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited) and Belgian
Bank (now merged into Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia))
and was mainly responsible for corporate finance activities and business
promotions.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond (FRJk#&), aged 49, is our independent
non-executive Director who was appointed on 4 September 2013.
Currently Mr. Chan is an executive director of ENM Holdings Limited
(stock code: 128) and independent non-executive directors of both
Nature Flooring Holding Company Limited (to be renamed as “Nature
Home Holding Company Limited”) (stock code: 2083) and Quali-
Smart Holdings Limited (stock code: 1348), the shares of these three
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Phoenitron Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8066), the shares of which are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was also an independent non-executive
director of Orient Energy and Logistics Holdings Limited, which was
delisted from the Frankfurt Stock Exchange on 15 December 2012.
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Mr. Chan possesses over twenty years of experience in the field of
accounting, taxation, finance and trust. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor
of economics degree from the University of Sydney in April 1986. Mr.
Chan is a member of HKICPA, a certified practicing accountant of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a member of
the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants.

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (R #§), aged 42, is our independent non-
executive Director who was appointed on 4 September 2013. At present,
Mr. Chu is a managing director of Halcyon Capital Limited which
specialises in initial public offerings and corporate advisory in mergers
and acquisitions.

Mr. Chu possesses over twenty years of experience in corporate finance
and auditing. Mr. Chu used to work for an international accounting firm
and other corporate finance arms of listed financial institutions in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Western Ontario in Canada with
a bachelor of arts degree in June 1992 and from The University of Hull in
the United Kingdom with a master of business administration (investment
and finance) degree in June 1997. He also obtained a diploma in
accounting from the School of Business and Economics of the Wilfrid
Laurier University in Canada in October 1993. Mr. Chu is a member of
HKICPA.

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong (5&Ei &), aged 56, is our independent non-executive
Director who was appointed on 4 September 2013. He is also a
practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since November 1993.
Currently Mr. Cheung is a partner of S.H. Chan & Co., a solicitors’ firm in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
Hong Kong in 1981 and a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of
London in 1990. Mr. Cheung was thereafter awarded the Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws by the University of Hong Kong in 1991.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hui Chun Ho Eric (EFf&’%), aged 39, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary. Mr. Hui join our Group in February 2012 and is
responsible for the overall financial accounting and reporting, corporate
finance and company secretarial matters of our Group. Mr. Hui is also an
independent non-executive director of Modern Land (China) Co., Limited
(stock code: 1107), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Hui possesses a solid background of over fifteen years of experience
in auditing, financial accounting and reporting, company secretarial
matters and corporate finance. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Hui was
a group financial controller of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3322), and was the group accounting manager and the company
secretary of Embry Holdings Limited (stock code: 1388). The shares
of these two companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He also worked for Ernst & Young and left as manager.

He is the fellow members of both The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and HKICPA, and an associate of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Hui obtained a degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1998 and was awarded
a degree of master of business administration with distinction by The
University of Manchester, United Kingdom in 2013.

Mr. Choi Tak On Jobby (¥f8%), aged 45, is the Senior Mortgage Sales
Manager of our Group. Mr. Choi joined our Group in January 2005 and is
responsible for administering the mortgage loan sales and credit assessment
of our Group’s lending business.

Mr. Chan Siu Fai (FR2*#8), aged 51, is the Senior Mortgage Sales Manager of
our Group. Mr. Chan joined our Group in November 2000 and is responsible
for administering the mortgage loan sales and credit assessment of our
Group’s lending business.
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Report of the Directors
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present our first report of the
Directors together with the audited financial statements of our Group for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

GROUP REORGANISATION

Our Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 6 February 2013 under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the
Cayman lIslands. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of Shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, our Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 9 September
2013 (the “Reorganisation”). Further details of the Reorganisation and
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant thereto are set out in the Prospectus
and in Notes 1 and 17 to the financial statements.

The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 2 October
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Our Company is an investment holding company. Details of the principal
activities of our subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of our
Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of our Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 43.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.8
cents per ordinary share, totalling HK$11,620,000 payable to our
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of our
Company which will be closed on Wednesday, 20 August 2014.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
Details of the principal properties for investment purposes are set out on
page 97.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of our Group and of our Company during the
year are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of our Group are set out in Notes 15 and 16,
respectively to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of our Company are set out in
Note 23 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of our Company at 31 March 2014 available for
distributions to Shareholders amounted to HK$103,376,000 (2013: Nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under our Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of our
Group for the previous financial years is set out on page 98.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The listing of the Shares commenced on 2 October 2013. Neither our
Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of our Company’s listed securities during the period from 2 October 2013
and up to the date of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole shareholder of our
Company on 4 September 2013 (the “Adoption Date”). The principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
those participants who made contributions to our Group with a view to
motivating them and/or attracting and retaining them for the long term
growth of our Group. The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to any Director (whether
executive or non-executive or independent non-executive), employee
(whether full time or part time), officer, consultant, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to our Group or any entity in
which our Company or any subsidiary holds any interest whom the Board
determines on the basis of contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of our Group.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of
an option (the “Offer Date”), which must be a business date; (b) the
average closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of a share of
our Company.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of an option.
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The total number of shares of our Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (exclusive of options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of our Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of our Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of our Company in issue on the
Listing Date.

Our Company may seek approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit set out hereinabove such that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of our Company under the limit as refreshed shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval
to refresh such limit. Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such limit as refreshed.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of shares
as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No option may
be granted under this Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme of our Company if it would result in the above-mentioned 30%
limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of our Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued shares for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Board to each grantee, which period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is made but
shall end in any event not later than ten years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. No further
options may be granted more than ten years after the Adoption Date.

Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years from the Adoption Date.

As at the date of this annual report, no options had been granted or
agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of our Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Koung Nam (appointed on 6 February 2013)

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman) (appointed on 6 February 2013)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 4 September 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (appointed on 4 September 2013)
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (appointed on 4 September 2013)

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong (appointed on 4 September 2013)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of our Company,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment
and be subjected to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of our Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all Directors appointed
by the Board will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of our
Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Our Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.183 of the Listing Rules. Our Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date and is renewable automatically for successive terms of three
years, unless it is terminated by not less than three months prior written
notice or otherwise in accordance with the service agreement. Each of
the executive Directors will receive a monthly salary subject to annual
review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Board.
Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a discretionary bonus
as may be determined by the Board and the remuneration committee
of the Board after each completed year of service provided that the
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses payable in each financial year
to all executive Directors shall not exceed five per cent of the audited
consolidated net profit attributable to the equity holders of our Company
but before extraordinary or exceptional items of the relevant financial
year. Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a guaranteed
bonus which is equivalent to one-month salary.
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Our Group has provided a quarter located at Flat A on 30th Floor of
Tower 9, The Palazzo, No. 28 Lok King Street, Shatin, Hong Kong
to an executive Director, Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William as part of the
remuneration of his directorship in our Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with our Company for an initial term of two years
commencing from the Listing Date and thereafter it may be extended
for such period as he and our Company may agree in writing, and may
be terminated by not less than three months (save for the notice period
which is one month for Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond) written notice or
otherwise in accordance with the relevant letter of appointment. The
annual fees payable by our Company to the independent non-executive
Directors is an aggregate amount according to the letters of appointment.

Saved as disclosed herein, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company has a service
contract with members of our Group that is not determinable by our
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Share Option Scheme above, at no time during
the year was our Company, any of our subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or
our parent company a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of
our Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors, or
their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of our Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for transactions in connection with the Reorganisation in
preparation for the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange, as
disclosed in the Prospectus and in Note 1 to the financial statements,
and save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no contracts of
significance in relation to our Group’s business to which our Company,
any of our subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or our parent company was a
party and in which any director of our Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any business
which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to compete with the
business of our Group.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 28 to 30.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive of our Company and their respective associates in
the shares and underlying shares of our Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by our Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO were as follows:

EERTHABIRA QAT NARKEZE 2
BROREBRGZEER, XA

R2014F3A31H  ARAISEELaRETEE
REEBAZEE AL RARQE KT LR
(E&ERBFHFREBERSG) 2B RMARERMD 0
BRI AR R B IR IR B 5 S HA B R SEXV I 5 352 1§
BTHENELMP 2 #RRABNT !

Interest in our Company (long position) RAE NGz R (FE)
Approximate %
Number of of interest in
Name of directors Capacity and Nature of interest shares our Company
LERIUNGI b £
EEnE SO RERMEE RHOEE BHAED T
Mr. Chan Koung Nam Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 72.3%
BRYCE - RZEHEE 0 = (Note 1)
(MH3E1)
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 72.3%
PRI B SEE R EHEE o s (Note 1)
(MH3E1)
Note 1: These Shares are held by Tin Ching Holdings. Each of Mr. Chan Koung  Hi#1 : 3ZERMBRELEREES - BAEEERE X
Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William owns 50% of the issued share BEEDRERRRIZEREBITRAEIS0% °
capital of Tin Ching Holdings. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the RIEFE S R EERGIEXVEPMIES - R
SFO, both Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William are FEERRABEEEOERASRRRBIERFTBNL
deemed to be interested in all the shares of our Company in which Tin RERBEANBARTIRND P HEB#EE
Ching Holdings is interested or deemed to be interested.
Save as disclosed above, none of our directors or chief executives and ﬁ%t‘xﬁ}zﬁg%&h B ES AN RITEHER K
their respective associates of our Company had registered any interest or ~ H & BEE A AR A B sk E T A FAESEE 2 %D
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of our Company or any  skiHEAR M+ @ A RIEZE 5 L H S 10| £ 352

of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to our Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 March 2014, the following persons (other than a director or chief
executive of our Company), who had interests or short positions in the
shares or the underlying shares of our Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, were as follows:

IERNARELARGRARR S 2
=

R2014F3A31H * M FAL(EZHARRIH
TEZUINRARR ZRMDEER G HEE A
BIBEERASEIEXNDHLFE2REID I 2 &
NFUABEEZERAR AR EESFRGE
1B FE 336K ERL R B BIE AT 2 E LAz
ELSBAR

Approximate %

Number of of interest in

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares our Company
ERINETE £

"L B, RERME RO EE BAED K
Tin Ching Holdings Beneficial owner 300,000,000 72.3%
REiER BEEERA
Mr. Chan Koung Nam Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 72.3%
BRI AL REEHDEE R R
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 72.3%
BRCESEAE REEHDEE R R

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of our Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of our Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by our Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administrative of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of our Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, our top five customers accounted for
approximately 28.5% of our total revenue and our single largest customer
accounted for approximately 7.8% of our total revenue.

All our top five customers were independent third parties. To the best of
our knowledge, information and belief, none of our Group, our Directors,
members of our senior management, and their respective associates
and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the issued Shares, had any
interest in or financial or business relationship with any of our Group’s top
five customers during the year.

B FXXHEEIN - N2014F3A318 » fEEA
AL (BEH AR ITHREF AN REARE]Z
RS EERMN T - EEREBEESRHAERGSE
XVDEE2 R B3P EP 2 G T AR ERE 2 Bz ok
KA RAREES MHE R FEI361KE LR
$ AIRIR A BESCFTIE 2 Bt it R 2 B 3ok
go

EEEN
RAFEAR - ARALELBRIEFNEZLD
EBZERERTB IR RFBEAGH -

FEERF

BE2014F3AB A ILFE - HANEKREPL
HPIRW AR K28.5% R FEFNE —ZFKEFIE
IR ABKIT7.8% °

AREFYRBUE=T] - BRFIMAA - FAIER
P ARE EF SREEEXEMEER
BOBEA  UREEDHTRMDE% N LR
R EFABERAKELATEFTHEEAE
kR R T TS S R SRR R o
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of our controlling Shareholders, namely Tin Ching Holdings, Mr.
Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, has entered into the
Deed of Non-competition in favor of our Company, pursuant to which
each of the controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally,
undertakes and covenants with each of our Company and our
subsidiaries that with effect from the Listing Date and for as long as
the Shares remain so listed on the Stock Exchange and he/it and his/
its associates, individually or collectively with any other controlling
Shareholder(s) is, directly or indirectly, interested in 30% or more of the
Shares in issue, or is otherwise regarded as a controlling Shareholder
(as that term is defined under the Listing Rules from time to time) of
our Company, each of the controlling Shareholders shall not, and shall
procure that none of his/its associates (excluding any members of our
Group) shall, among others:

(a) directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any business
in competition with or likely to be in competition with the existing
business activity and any business activities undertaken by our Group
from time to time (the “Restricted Business”) which any member
of our Group may undertake in the future in Hong Kong except for
the holding of not more than 5% shareholding interests in any listed
company in Hong Kong;

(b) take any direct or indirect action which constitutes an interference
with or a disruption to the Restricted Business including, but not
limited to, solicitation of our customers, suppliers or staff; and

(c) exploit his/its knowledge or information obtained from our Group to

compete, directly or indirectly, with the business carried on by our
Group from time to time.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transaction, which also constituted
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules, entered into
by our Group during the year ended 31 March 2014 is contained in Note
29 to the financial statements.

The following transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2014. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transactions

(1) On 29 November 2013, HK Finance (as borrower), our Company
(as guarantor) and Tin Ching Industrial (as lender) entered into the
loan agreement, pursuant to which Tin Ching Industrial agreed to
provide a loan facility of up to HK$30,000,000 to HK Finance for the
expansion of the existing property mortgage business of our Group at
an interest rate of 1.75% per annum over the Hong Kong Dollar prime
rate quoted by DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for a term subject to
review by Tin Ching Industrial at any time but in any event no later
than one year after the date of the loan agreement.

(2) On 17 January 2014, HK Finance (as borrower), our Company (as
guarantor) and Tin Ching Industrial (as lender) entered into another
loan agreement, pursuant to which Tin Ching Industrial agreed to
provide the loan facility of up to HK$50,000,000 to HK Finance for
the expansion of the existing property mortgage business of our
Group at an interest rate of 1.75% per annum over the Hong Kong
Dollar prime rate quoted by DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for a term
subject to review by Tin Ching Industrial at any time but in any event
no later than one year after the date of the loan agreement.

As Tin Ching Industrial is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tin Ching
Holdings, the substantial Shareholder of our Company, accordingly the
loan agreements constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, as the loan facility
is provided by Tin Ching Industrial for our Group’s and Shareholders’
benefit, and on better commercial terms to our Company where no
security over our Group’s assets is granted in respect of the loan
facility, the loan agreements are exempt from reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules. However, our Company has
made voluntary announcements to update our Shareholders and
our Company’s potential investors and stakeholders on the recent
development of our Group.

Our Company’s auditor was engaged to report on our Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historial Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA.

AREBREZE2014F3 831 H I FEFT 3 2
FRZ(NEKBERS(EER WAL )HE
R ImR M E29 o
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The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed
in Note 29 to the financial statements in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by our
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
independent non-executive Directors of our Company. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected
transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of our Group and under arm’s length negotiations; (b) either
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to our
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; (c) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of our Company and our
Shareholders as a whole.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to our Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, our Company has maintained
a sufficient public float of its share capital in the Stock Exchange
throughout the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014 and up to
the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Chan Kwong Yin William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB E RS

i
pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HONG KONG FINANCE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 96, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 June 2014
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

REZEBAR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z£20143 831 H [t FE

Year ended 31 March
HZE3A31BLEE

2014 2013
20144 20134
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E FHExT THET
Revenue W zs 6 81,209 66,420
Other income EH A 6 2,211 2,032
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment — EEREWEZ AFE
properties g 16 2,320 7,950
Administrative expenses THHEX 7 (31,808) (24,567)
Operating profit R T 53,932 51,835
Finance costs Bh & Ak 2N 9 (6,177) (9,469)
Profit before income tax RR FR 18 56 A & F 47,755 42,366
Income tax expense FriSHif X 10 (7,223) (6,552)
Profit and total comprehensive AAREEABEFERIR
income for the year attributable 2HWALEE
to owners of the Company 40,532 35,814
Earnings per share for profit attributable RAGIHE AEERZ
to owners of the Company AR
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) — ER R EE (B 11 11.4 11.9

Details of dividend payable to owners of the Company attributable to the  ARFEERFEL ZENANATHEE A ZIKEFEE
profit for the year are set out in Note 13. N TR
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As at 31 March 2014 72201443 A31H

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET TFET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENMEE 15 66,405 66,165
Investment properties Ay 16 73,090 70,770
Loans receivable EUE X 19 33,143 16,653
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 172,638 153,588
Current assets REEE
Loans receivable FERE R 19 434,565 300,135
Interest receivables FEMFIE 20 10,640 6,315
Prepayments, deposits and BEEH - EeE Rk
other receivables E fth g U Fh18 21 2,355 781
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 22 863 2,551
Total current assets REEELRE 448,423 309,782
Total assets BERE 621,061 463,370
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the owners ENTHEE AEWL
of the Company s
Share capital [N 23 4,150 -
Reserves #1E 377,930 245,373
Proposed final dividend BEARHRE 13 11,620 -
Total equity FEERE 393,700 245,373
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As at 31 March 2014 201443 A31H

As at 31 March

MA3A31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5E TR FHBT
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 &k E b FIE 25 3,029 12,0563
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary L ANIEE =N ] 29(b)(i) 39,000 15,699
Tax payable FESFIIE 2,141 2,575
Bank borrowings RITIERX 26 179,136 183,838
Total current liabilities REBEEAEE 223,306 214,165
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEMSBHARE 27 4,055 3,832
Total non-current liabilities kRBEEETE 4,055 3,832
Total liabilities BEHAE 227,361 217,997
Total equity and liabilities EakaEHEEHE 621,061 463,370
Net current assets REBEEFE 225,117 95,617
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERBRAREBARE 397,755 249,205
On behalf of the Board REREED

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin, William
BB L

Chairman
FE

Mr. Chan Kuong Nam
BREE L

Executive director

P

HITE

*
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As at 31 March 2014 72201443 A31H

As at 31 March

MW3H31H
2014 2013
201445 20134
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET TFET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Subsidiaries (N PNE 17 368,282 =
Total non-current assets IRBEELTE 368,282 =
Current assets RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 22 15 =
Total current assets REEELRE 15 =
Total assets EEHAE 368,297 =
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the owners of KARHEE AEMN
the Company s
Share capital [N 23 4,150 -
Reserves & 24 352,527 (6)
Proposed final dividend $ER R B AR S 13 11,620 -
Total equity FEREEE 368,297 (6)
LIABILITY =R
Current liability REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary AR PNGIE e 17 - 6
Total liability BEAHE - 6
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEERHE 368,297 -
Net current assets/liabilities REBEE BERE 15 (6)
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRBERE 368,297 (6)

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin, William

RABRE

Chairman
E
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

REEESBR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z£20143 831 H [t FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE AENL
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
IR B 5E EXFE RE 2 s
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Note TERT TERT THERT THET THET
(Note 24(a))
BisE (KizE24(a))
Balance at 1 April 2012 R2012F4 81 A& = = 60,030 118,519 178,549
Total comprehensive income F£E2HERALLE
for the year - - - 35,814 35,814
Transactions with owners HEEANRS
Interim dividend FEARL B 13 - - - (9,000) (9,000)
Contributions from owner wAEALE ()
(Note) - - 40,010 - 40,010
Balance at 31 March 2013  }2013%3H31H
E - - 100,040 145,333 245,373
Balance at 1 April 2013 H2013E4 A1 A& - - 100,040 145,333 245,373
Total comprehensive income F£E2HEURALLE
for the year - - - 40,532 40,532
Transactions with owners HEEANRS
Issue of new shares BATHRR 23(b) 20 - (20) - -
Capitalisation of shares i &R 23(c) 2,980 (2,980) = - -
Issue of new shares BITHIR 23(d) 1,150 117,300 - - 118,450
Listing expenses charged to AR EHNR 2
share premium EmA% = (10,655) = = (10,655)
Balance at 31 March 2014  A2014%3A31H
Wi 4,150 103,665 100,020 185,865 393,700

Note: BiiEE -

Contribution from owners represents the increase in share capital of the B AHEERATNEBA T ZRAIE N -
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 £ 2014638310 [t FE

Year ended 31 March
HBZE3A31BLEE

2014 2013
20145 20134
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBELENHEESRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations e (A FMEERS 14 (127,176) 2,545
Interest paid ERTHE (6,177) (9,469)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEN (7,434) (6,848)
Net cash used in operating activities REEIFFTARE FRE (140,787) (18,772)
Cash flows from investing activities REERELENHEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEYE  WMENLKE (3,002) (1,154)
Interest received 2 E 8 12
Net cash used in investing activities BT AR S F5E (2,994) (1,142)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEKELENEESRE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITRAMMER (183,838) (111,357)
Proceeds from new bank and other borrowings #1188 877 & E & TS K IE 179,136 123,341
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHERRITIF R - 5,208
Increase in an amount due to fellow subsidiary &R ZHIE A ] g IEEE N 39,000 -
Proceeds from initial public offering BRAFREERERIA 107,795 -
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEBEAIRS F58 142,093 17,192
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BRERBREZEBYWORL),
equivalents EhnFEE (1,688) 2,278
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FUHRE LIRS EEY
the year 2,551 273
Cash and cash equivalents at end of EXRNRERBESEEY
the year 22 863 2,551
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SR M

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 February 2013 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans in Hong Kong.

The directors regard Tin Ching Holdings Limited (“Tin Ching
Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, to be
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company has been successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 2
October 2018.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in HK dollars
(“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on 6
June 2014.

Key events

Pursuant to a group reorganisation as set out under the section
headed “Corporate structure and corporate reorganisation” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 17 September 2013, which
was completed on 9 September 2013 (the “Reorganisation”), the
Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group. The Reorganisation is merely a reorganisation
of the Group’s business with no change in management of such
business and the ultimate holding company remains the same.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared as if the Group had always been in existence
throughout both years presented, or since the respective dates of
incorporation or establishment of the group companies.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

—REH
EREEEBARAR([ARAR])R20135F
2A6AREBREHE AREE22E (1961F
FEZIEE - KR REF) ERE/HET
MK REREER AR o ANA 7 K &t ¥
E R ik ACricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands °

ARBR/—HREZERAT - AR E REHK
Bom([AEE ) TEREENEREME
RIBEFNREZET -

EERREERARAR([REER ] /A
NANSZEERRDRF > RRARNREBELE
SrEMMAKL

RATN2013FE10 2B FIEEB AR
SR AR ([BRFT])ERKI LT o

BRREEAN  ZEGARMBRRAEBTT
(TBT 2% - ZFHRAMBHREREN2014
FoAGHEESEHETE -

BEHEH

RIEARATHHA20135FE9 17 BRI KRE
BACEEEROCESHE] —SHENEE
FA(TEH]BER2013F9 A9 =/ © AR
AIEN AR AR ANEBENEB AR MNERA
A BEHEATEBNEREMR  BEER
BEWEEE  BRKRIERARHEIFTE -
Eit - AEEGREVBREREERNBIZASE
ERAEFMNMEFEERREERFE @ K
BASEETARS B /M BBt
ﬁﬁﬁ‘nm@ °

EXRSTTHERBE
BEZEFAMBRRAFANEIZETEK

RN TX - R BEHEPIN  ZFEHREE
BERRZIINAEFE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXEHBEHME %)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 WREE

50

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@) Standard and amendments to existing Standards
effective in 2013 adopted by the Group
The following Standard and amendments to existing
Standards have been adopted by the Group for the first
time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April
2013:

Amendment to HKAS 1, “Financial statement
presentation” regarding other comprehensive income is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2012. The main change resulting from this amendment
is a requirement for entities to group items presented
in “other comprehensive income” (OCI) on the basis of
whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or
loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). This
amendment did not have any material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements” is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013. It builds on existing principles by
identifying the concept of control as the determining
factor in whether an entity should be included within
the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional guidance
to assist in the determination of control where this
is difficult to assess. The Company has made an
assessment as at the date of initial application of HKFRS
10 (i.e. 1 January 2013) in respect of the Group’s control
in its investees under the new definition in HKFRS 10
and concluded that the application of the new standard
did not result in any change in the consolidation status of
its subsidiaries.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited E#&EE&£EERALA

RZEGRAPBHRERRKBEEGTMA
e([HESMAE])BEMNTENS
HEEN([HEAHBREER DR -
ZEFRAMBHRERERE LRKAEDR
3 UEREAFEIENREMEER
P& -

BRBEMBHRELERREYBHRERT
EEMETHARG G THREEE
BERBASE S BRENBEFRELY
HIE o B R E A RE NS
FRBEGEFAEGEEMBEHREMEEE
R BN T XM T4BEE -

LA EHBERRBESER 225
(a) A& BEMF2013F £ W
B &2 38 B &R mEET
KREEDR2013F48185 2
EFIR M B B S B R ERA R 2
BRI A LEAEERTAT ¢

BB G ERE1RIEFT ARG
Eme2ABAN B BHREZ
Fl] - 201297 A1H= 2 &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
211 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(@)

Standard and amendments to existing Standards
effective in 2013 adopted by the Group (Continued)
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement” is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
It aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The requirements
do not extend the use of fair value accounting but
provide guidance on how it should be applied where its
use is already required or permitted by other standards
within HKFRSs. Other than the additional disclosures
as presented, the application of HKFRS 13 did not have
any material impact on the amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The following new and amended standards and
interpretation have been published and are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2013, but are not currently relevant to the Group.

HKAS 19 (Amendments)
BERGFTERFE195 (BEFTR)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
ERGFTERE 275 (KIEET)
HKAS 28 (Revised)
BT ERIE 285 (K185T)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
BB mEERE15R
(BETA)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

Employee benefits
EEBH

LAV DR

Government loans
BT E K

2 BEREHBERBE#S

2.1 HEEEE)
LABHBERRESR 228 (£)

(@)

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and joint ventures
REERRRAEERIRE

Financial instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting

financial assets and financial liabilities

ERMBRELERIETHR
({EFTA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

kErAE

TRTR: RE-BHESREE

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure of interests

in other entities: Transition guidance

BB HRELEF105 -
BRPBHREELFEI1HER
BRI IEERIE125%
(ERTA)

RmEE - BRES

RaPBmR  KRZHERREMERERN

& B B A F 2013 F A R
B IR B 2ERIMER] (&)
BRI EERE13H [ AT
B5tE ] R2013F1 1B~
AR TS AR ERK - 2 2R
EEZBRREATFENBEESR
RAF A2/ E AR RiE
RARE BB SRS ER R E
BT FrRA— B RMREEM
BE - RERKWERAATES
FTEER - EREZEREESR
BB RS RS AE IR B S E R H At
AE BI| 4 = (55 R B P 40 ) /B R Bt
T3E3| - BREVIRFEINEFEIN -
JEREBY S mE ERIFE135%
HAEBGRE VB HRRAER L
CRIVEELEFTRNEATE -

TEFE] REIERT R R ZED
EHEMNAB22013F4 818
BRIz AEB 25T BEE
77+ B BTEAREE N T ERE o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
UTBHgz#
Bz &5t

HMBEXR

1 January 2013
2013%F1H1H
1 January 2013
2013%F1H1H
1 January 2013
2013F1 H1H
1 January 2013
2013F1 H1H

1 January 2013
20131 A1H

1 January 2013

20131 H1H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXEHBEHME %)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 fEREE (%)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
21.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures WA EHEREBEER &8 (£)

(Continued)

(b) (Continued) (o) (&)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

LT BE#s 2%

BmzaEst

BB+

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
HERUBRELERNE1155 HEZHE 201351 A1H
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
BN BRELERIFE1255 REME B R KE 2013F1A1H
HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual improvements 2009-2011 cycle 1 January 2013
EEVHMEENUBETA)  H2009F E2011 FHEBZ FEE 2013%1H1H

1 January 2013

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of a

surface mine

EE(EREMBRE2E FE KB 15 EE T B B0 IR AR AR 201341 H1H
ZE8g)-2EFE205
(c) Standard, amendments and interpretation to existing (c) MAREM B AREEIERL 2 H
Standards that are not yet effective and have not been Bl (BT ANIREER| 2 E

adopted by the Group

The following Standard, amendments and interpretation
to existing Standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April 2013 and
have not been early adopted:

AR - BRI A RIBB %R 2
BRER2013F41BHBZY
BREECHEM - MEMARER - In
IR PN

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

UTHHSR 2%

L cA-E il

X

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 1 July 2014
ERGFHERE19R(BFTAR) ATERAMEE : EEMHNK 201447 A1H

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

BB g ERIEI25R (BT A)
HKAS 36 (Amendment)

FEEERIEI65 (EFTA)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

FBGFHERFEI9R (BRI A)

Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

PRTA: 2 -HHeREERSRAR

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
financial Assets

FEFEE 2 AT E S BIRE

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

SRITA : BRRFE - TEIAZEE REH
BEAZEE

52  Hong Kong Finance Group Limited #&E&EESEHERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
s ey

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEBERBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

211 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

2.1 HHEEE)

(c) Standard, amendments and interpretation to existing
Standards that are not yet effective and have not been
adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 7 and
9 (Amendment)

BBV BWEEETRR
BBM B wEEREINR
({BETA)

HKFRS 9

BB R ELERIFEIR

HKFRS 10, 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
(Amendment)

Mandatory Effective Date and Transition
Disclosures

SR AR B B K iR B Y B

Financial Instruments

ST HE

Investment Entities; and

Jet

23

(©

LIEBHBERBRBEN 228 (F)

e AR A R B 7S R [ 3 S AR A 2

al -
(%)

ERIARRELER 2R

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
LT H#g 2%
BAG  E 5T HA R

%

1 January 2015
20151 H1H

Not yet established
by HKICPA

BRGNS M ARE
1 January 2014

®"E 201451818

i
i

EEYBHELERFE105 - &
BEIEREERE 125 R E
BestERIE275R(20114F)

P &

3

\

({BETA)
HKFRS 14
BB RELERIFE 1455
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21
H8 (BRMBHRERE
ZEE) D2EE21%R
HKFRSs (Amendment)
BN BRELER(BETAR)
HKFRSs (Amendment)
B BRELERI(BETA)

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
EERLERP

Levies

BE

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
2010 E2012F A 2 FE o
Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle
2011 E2013F A 2 FE o

1 January 2016
20161 H1H8
1 January 2014
20141 H18

1 July 2014
2014F7R1H
1 July 2014
2014F7A1H
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHEEHZE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
211 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2.1 HHEEE)
LABHBERRESR 22 (E)

54

(Continued)

(c) Standard, amendments and interpretation to existing

Standards that are not yet effective and have not been
adopted by the Group (Continued)
The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the above Standard,
amendments and interpretation to existing Standards
to the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether these will result in substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and presentation of the
financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation
2.2.1 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
confirm with the Group’s accounting policies.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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(©) MAREMEAREEIL BMERP 2
Al - BRI ARBBRA 222
(%)
AEECRATERA LA
A~ BRI ARREER 22 EY
AEBZERTE - AEEHAK
EETEEEHAKEZ ST
REMBRRZEVNTRELS

2288
221 B A E]

BB RSB A EHEN
ER(EEEBLER)  -E4A5H
AXYEELEBRMEZAEM
H BERENEBRELERZEN
TEZTOHE - AIANEEZESZ
ER -MEBELARERIRERER
SEZBERBAN - HEBLIFA
SRR B R IEA B

SEHARFIRNKS - GHASKH
REAMRGHARER W EHH - K
EREBETTHE HERTANZE
BeHCOETERMELFIE - UHE
REREEMHEEBOR K e

222 BB HREK

P B 2~ B 848 & T LA R A RUR B
AR - KANBHEEEEREGLE
A MBRRAMNEERS W RER
BREEFARRBIIRA °

BB SRE N TR A
AN E A R TR SN2
EUA B BT s MR 1R
BEEBRBRLE S FEE (B
BB ) A B 5 R 0 B E A
B B ZE 7 AR 1T B
R



Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EA=:tBHEHME#
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting 2.3 752 #

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of
the entities now comprising the Group that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices and residential
property for a director. Leasehold land classified as finance lease
and all other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

REDHME2HRTAER T BELERK
EFRENAMEHR - - TREER
REABEDEERRAEREDFHR
B YERBNRRSAXEIEENE
BHHITES - HERBEMERE -

249 RE

DR EINEE
AEBERERNMBRRABENER
B DEAHEBREMENTIELE
BRENEY([DWEERFE - Ral
BHMERARRANINEEE R AKE K
EHREEETES

25 % BMERRE

THEBTFIERERRAERESTNGE
EME - -WOBSREHENHE LI
NFFBAEMYE - BERRERBENX
RRIFTEFER - BEXEABEEBZE
HEEERELANRX °

R RIR B AR KB M & # R [ A
SHE - MZABKAERSHER -
HEKRATHABENREERERR
EREE(NER) - BREYNREE
SRBUEMER - IAEEMEERREE
REeREEAMNPHHRERS2EK
AR ©

ME  BERRENFTEDRBERZE
REEEAIERAFEFRARKADBEEE R
PREE - FIRIT

— Land and buildings 40-50 years
-~ BT 40-50%F

— Office equipment 4 years
VN 45

— Furniture and fixtures 4 years
—RENEE 45

— Leasehold improvement 4 years
-THEMEEE 45

— Motor vehicles 4 years
R 45
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAZ:THE#HME#E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25% - BMERREZ)

56

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.6 Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. After
initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as “fair value
gains on revaluation of investment properties”.

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:THEHMEL
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Financial assets

28LHMEE

The Group classifies its financial assets into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise loans receivable, interest receivables,
deposits and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
in the consolidated statement of financial position (Notes 2.11,
2.12,2.18 and 2.14).

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

For assets carried at amortised costs, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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POLICIES (Continued)
210 Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

2.10 IR K SRR A9 £ B B 1E (48)
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(Continued)
The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

(@) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

(b) A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

(c) The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

(d) It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

(e) The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

(f) Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

() adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in
the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the company may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument's fair value using an observable market
price.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASBEHME#E
POLICIES (Continued)
210 Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

2.10 IR AE K B AR A9 £ B B 1E (48)

(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.11 Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of loans receivable is expected in
one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.12 Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interests derived from property mortgage
loans granted to customers in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of other receivables is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.13 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are included
in cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows if the bank overdrafts form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within
“Bank borrowings” in current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.17 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:HHEHMEL)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.19 BRI R AEAL T {58 (48)
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(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of reporting date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

For employees in Hong Kong, the Group has a defined
contribution plan. The Group pays contributions to trustee-
administered pension funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EA=:tBHEHME#
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition 2.22 W 7> B AR

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

(a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables
are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

(b) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.23 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders.

2.25 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of subsidiaries
or associates to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:HHEHMEL)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

225 BIEHERE A ()

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature is
zero because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms,
and the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of
the guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future premiums
is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount
required to settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history of
past losses, supplemented by management’s judgement. The
fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating
to guarantees is reported in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within other operating expenses.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B¥ERER
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 BB EEEE
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The Group’s activities expose it to various types of financial risks:
market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Market risk - Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its bank borrowings
(Note 26) and an amount due to a fellow subsidiary (Note
29(b)(i)). Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset
by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
Substantially all the Group’s bank borrowings and an amount
due to a fellow subsidiary were issued at floating rates and
the Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest-rate risk. The Group manages its cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk mainly by adjusting the
interest rates on loans granted to customers.

As at 31 March 2014, if market interest rates had been 1%
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$1,821,000 lower/
higher (2013: HK$1,535,000), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEERERE#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BB R A ZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (b) EERE

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, loans receivable, interest receivables, deposits
and other receivables and financial guarantee contracts.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. The
carrying amount of these balances represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets which are stated as follows:
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31 March
3H31H

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Loans receivable (Note 19) FEME K (HIEE19) 467,708 316,788
Interest receivables (Note 20) FEU A B (FF5E20) 10,640 6,315
Deposits and other receivables (Note 21) TR E M EWRIE(HEE21) 640 444
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) RekBEFEY(KE22) 863 2,551
479,851 326,098
Financial guarantee contracts (Note 30) B ISER G 4 (FIFES0) - 26,713

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, most of the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents are deposited in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which the Group’s
management believes are of high credit quality. Moreover,
management makes periodic assessments on the
collectability of the amounts due from related parties and
financial guarantee contracts, and does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

As at 31 March 2014, all of the Group’s loans receivable
were neither past due nor impaired (2013: neither past due
nor impaired).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B¥ERERE#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BB R ZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR(Z
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As at 31 March 2014 and 20183, interest receivables of
HK$6,605,000 and HK$3,095,000, respectively, were past
due but not impaired. These related to a number of third
party customers for whom there was no history of default.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment on individual
loans is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of their new and existing clients before standard payment
terms and conditions are offered. If there is no independent
rating, the Group assesses the credit quality of the customer
based on the customer’s financial position, past experience
and other factors. The Group holds collateral against loans
receivable and interest receivables in the form of mortgages
over property. Majority of the collateral are residential
properties, commercial properties and industrial properties
and all of the collaterals are located in Hong Kong. Individual
risk limits are set based on the value of collaterals provided
by customers and internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the directors. The utilisation of credit limits
is regularly monitored. The credit quality classification of
loans receivable and their respective interest receivables
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using the Group’s credit rating system is set out in the table MEEEEZ28B0T
below:
31 March
3H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT AT
Performing B4 478,348 323,103
Doubtful RER - -
Loss &5t - -
478,348 323,103
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEERERE#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BB R A ZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMRE

The Group considers the loans receivable as doubtful if the
repayment of principal and/or of interest has been overdue
for more than 3 months and principal, accrued interest
and/or future interest may not be fully secured by the fair
value of collateral at its prevailing market price. The Group
considers the loans receivable as loss if the repayment of
principal and/or of interest has been overdue for more than
6 months and the collection of principal and/or of interest
in full is improbable. The Group estimates and recognises
impairment losses for the loans and interest receivables
considered as ‘doubtful’ and ‘loss’, taking into account of
the fair values of the collateral at prevailing market prices
which are inadequate to cover the loans and interest
receivables. Since all principal that were not overdue and
interest which had been overdue for more than 3 months
were fully secured by the fair values of collaterals at their
respective market prices, the amount of doubtful and loss of
loans and interest receivables were nil as at 31 March 2014
(2013: Nil).

The Group performs collective assessment of the loans
receivable considered as ‘performing’ by grouping together
all its receivables with similar credit risk characteristics. The
impairment review is carried out on all those loans receivable
based on the historical impairment rates. Since the historical
impairment rate is zero during the financial years, the
directors therefore consider that the collective impairment
loss is nil as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

In general, the loan officers of the Group propose to
management of the Company on a monthly basis the amount
of provision to be made.

Sales to the top five customers constituted approximately
29% (2013: 31%) of the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2014, respectively. They accounted
for approximately 22% (2013: 25%) of the gross loans
receivable balances as at 31 March 2014.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
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(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group grants loans with a loan-to-value ratio of no more
than 70% of the value in the valuation report of the property,
for all property mortgage, and where it is subordinate
property mortgage, the aggregate lending (Group’s loan plus
loans under first mortgage) should not exceed 70% of the
value of the underlying property. The Directors meet regularly
to review the loan to value ratio. The Directors consider that
the credit risk arising from the loans receivable is significantly
mitigated by the property held as collateral, with reference
to the estimated market value of the property. The Group
maintains at all time each individual loans and interest
receivables amount be less than 70% of the total fair value of
the respective collateral at prevailing market price.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash flow
forecasting is performed by management. The Group
monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on
its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that
the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants
(where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s debt
financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance with
internal financial position ratio targets and, if applicable
external regulatory or legal requirements.

The Group’s primary cash requirements are for payment of
bank borrowings, an amount due to a fellow subsidiary and
for operating expenses.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B BEEEE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBESREK(E)
31 March
3H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Within one year: —FNRN:
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E b FIE 3,029 12,063
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ANIEESN NG e 40,365 16,248
Bank borrowings RITIE R 181,312 188,200
224,706 216,501
31 March
3H31H
2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial guarantee contracts: MIBEREH -
Within one year —FR - 10,950
Between one year and two years —FEMF - 950
Between two years and five years MEERF = 2,851
Over five years AEE - 11,962
- 26,713
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 RAm R EE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard Z’K%@iﬁﬁﬁzﬁm BERREREEEE
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order FRELE - W R IRERR A m R A H
to provide returns to the shareholder and benefits for other i A1) 75 48 %ﬁﬁ%\%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ" VAR 4 45 Bx ==
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to B AR AN 2R A AR R AR AN AR ©
reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group REFXRAERARE  AKELEH
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return BEXHTR %\E’U BE - ) B RRER
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce A BITHRSREEEENREGER °

debt.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
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3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.

MBEREEE)
32 RAEBREE (&)
AEENEEABRLERSEEEER

This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net AN o L RIRE R AR E5E T

debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank and other
borrowings’ and ‘amount due to a fellow subsidiary’ as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less pledged
bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated statements

EtE - B3R RABRER(BEES
BRI R B [ SR1T S ELA S 3R S [ 8
NRRWMERRFREADBEERRITHE
REREMBECFEY - RABBE R
BB RAIRE [BE |S8E - A%

of financial position. The Group’s strategy remains unchanged EHEIESETE 0 NEFER2014FE3
and the gearing ratio and net cash position of the Group as at 31 RAB1EMEBEEBGLRRASMNFE
March 2014 are as follows: NN
31 March
3H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Total borrowings (Note 26) BT (E26) 179,136 183,838
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JER R ZW B A7 IE 39,000 15,699
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) B ReREeEEY
(Mf7522) (863) (2,551)
Net debt BEFHE 217,273 196,986
Total equity EmiaTa 393,700 245,373
Gearing ratio BEEBBEHE 0.55 0.80
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 X FEIEE
The fair values of current financial assets and liabilities carried at RBHKAIEN R EeREERER
amortised cost approximate to their carrying amounts. AT EEERmERS °
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EEZE€ {4 RHE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(a) Loans, interest and other receivables
The Group assesses provision for impairment of loans,
interest and other receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied
to loans, interest and other receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of impairment of loans,
interest and other receivables requires the use of estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value of receivables and
provision for impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

(b) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
significant judgement is required in determining the provision
of income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the accounting

policies

(a) Investment property
The fair value of investment property is determined annually
by similar transaction on an open market in existing use
basis. In making the judgement, consideration has been
given to assumptions that are mainly on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period and appropriate
capitalisation rates of rental income.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, all of the Group’s
revenue is generated from the money lending business of providing
mortgage loans in Hong Kong. Revenue represents interest income
earned from loans offered to the Group’s customers. Information
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of the Group’s
performance, is focused on the operating results of the Group as
a whole as the Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete
financial information is available. Accordingly, no segment analysis or
information about the Group’s products and services are presented.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers and assets were
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2013.
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6 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6 WmRkHEAMKA
Revenue represents the interest income earned from the money W B AETBIREYEZBERNOREER
lending business of providing property mortgage loans in Hong Kong. FTEREX A9 F) B UL A © G A PR A Y 2 Je

Revenue and other income and gains recognised during the year are A RS
as follows:
Year ended 31 March
BZE3AMALEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Revenue W e
Interest income FEW A 81,209 66,420
Other income E AU A
Rental income AU A 2,203 2,017
Sundry income FEIEUWA 8 15
2,211 2,032

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

7 BEEITHAX

Year ended 31 March
HZESHASIBALEE

2014 2013

20144 2013%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 1B 8@ FIF X (MizE8) 9,042 6,727

Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHEFY 9,704 6,206

Legal and professional fees FENEEER 1,472 944

Rent and rates e &= 184 114

Auditor’s remuneration ZE NN & 1,100 452

Bank charges HRITHEZ 132 354

Referral fee ENBH 295 571

Valuation and search fee HERAESER 242 76
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BE RS EITE (iE15)

equipment (Note 15) 2,753 2,319

Listing expenses sl Fa 4,966 5,500

Other expenses Hf X 1,918 1,304

31,808 04,567
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 EEGAMEX(BREEZEEHFM)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Year ended 31 March
BZE3A31BLEE

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Salaries and bonus e RAEAT 8,601 6,468
Other benefits HAb g R 21 80
Pension costs - defined contribution plans BIRE KA — R E MR- IGHE

(Note (i) (B G)) 420 179
9,042 6,727

Note: =3

(0

(a)

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees in Hong Kong are each
required to contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant income with a
ceiling of HK$1,250 per month to the MPF scheme. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in future year.

Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of every director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:

() AKBEREFERERHIEATESGEDIZEBRHIE
AR E([RESFE]) - REBRESE
SNRTE - BEREREEEBRESARK
AHI5% (G A LR &1,2508 7T) MR E &
SR - ERBEEHEAN - ARENEEER
RHEE L PR R - BHES R GR AT B 1E
DR FZ R Z K o

(a) EEFHH
RAARBEZNEZE2014F3A31A 1L
FEMFHEZN DT

Salaries & Pension Other
Fees bonus costs  benefits Total
e FEREA BRERET HEFR &5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
THET FHET FHET THET FHET
Executive directors BITES

Mr. Chan Koun Nam BRCEESE - 1,212 15 - 1,227
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin, William PR B & - 1,212 15 840 2,067
Mr. Tse Pui To (Note (b)) M E A (B EE() - 982 15 - 997

Independent non-executive BIFHITES

directors

Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond ~ [RIK&E S 4 69 - - - 69
Mr. Chu Yat Pang, Terry e bt 104 - - - 104
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REIE % E 69 - - - 69
242 3,406 45 840 4,533
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 EERAMEX(BREEEZEHFM) =)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEFHM (&)
The remuneration of every director of the Company for the year RRABBEENREHE2013F3A31H Ik
ended 31 March 2013 is set out below: FEOFEIIAT
Salaries & Pension Other
Fees bonus costs benefits Total
WE FHeRIEA RARSKAE Hias =

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TATT TAETT TAT T TAETT

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Chan Koung Nam PR LR ST A - 750 15 = 765
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin, Willam % E%&4 - 750 14 840 1,604
Mr. Tse Pui To (Note (b)) A T A (IR (D)) - - - - -

Independent non-executive BV FHTEE

directors

Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond  BRIK&E 5L 4 - - - - -

Mr. Chu Yat Pang, Terry KIRNS T A - - - - -

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REE LA - - - - -

- 1,500 29 840 2,369

Note: fsE -

(a) Other benefits are benefits in kind representing estimated money () EM@EAEEDFE  BEAEEES
value for the rental of the residential property owned by the Group ElR—REETRANEEMENSHESH
and used by a director. FHEEEE -

(b) Mr. Tse Pui To (“Mr. Tse”) was appointed as an executive director (o) FIFEERE(TWELEINR2013F9A4H
of the Company on 4 September 2013. Prior to his appointment, BEZTARNRTNITEE -NEZT2
Mr Tse was an employee of the Group. The remuneration received Bl HEEARNEEES - S ERE
by Mr. Tse from the Group prior to the date of his appointment was & E 7 g U B 7N £ B /Y 3 I ok 5 AR
not included in the capacity of a director of the Company and the NEIRAREEWB AR ESHH -

subsidiaries of the Group.
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 EEGAMEX(BREEEZEHFM) 2
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EERBHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the HZE2014F3A31HIEFE » KEENR
Group include 3 directors for the year ended 31 March 2014 TSN REEATBIEIZEE(2013
(2013: 2), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis F28) ZEHWME 2R EXDHT
presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 Ao REE2014FE3A31BIEFE © B
individuals for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: 3), are as NFHT2%(2013F : 3% ) BREHAL
follows: B BN T

Year ended 31 March
BZESASIHILEE

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Salaries and bonus e RIEAT 1,493 2,302
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE A — R EHEKEE 30 44
1,523 2,346
The above individuals with the highest emoluments are within the titsEESEFEATHEMEEDOT -

following bands:

Year ended 31 March
HZE3A31HLEE

2014 2013

20144 20134

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AEL

HKS$Nil — HK$500,000 = 71-500,0007% 7T - -
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 t—1,000,0007 7T 2 3
2 8
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9 FINANCE COSTS 9 WMERAK
Year ended 31 March
BZESASIBHILEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Interest on bank borrowings wholly REFAEHERNBITER
repayable within 5 years B 3,698 5,074
Interest on bank overdrafts RITELFE 1,459 1,187
Interest on amount due to a fellow subsidiary  JE{T B Z M /B A & R IEFI B 1,020 2,837
Other loan interest EMERFE - 371
6,177 9,469
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 Frf88iBA X
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% MREE20145F3 A3 B ILFE - BHREFE
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit during the year AR M 16.5% (20134F © 16.5% ) Z B K&t
ended 31 March 2014, REBRETEME -
Year ended 31 March
BESASIBHLEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT
Hong Kong profits tax EBENET
— Current year N 7,165 6,723
— Over provision in prior years — [ FBREEE (165) (88)
Deferred income tax (Note 27) EIEFTS R (FI3E27) 223 (83)
7,223 6,552
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise as follows:

10 FRS %A (&)
AREER G HANENELEOBEREB RS
BNEBMT :

Year ended 31 March
HZE3A31BLEE

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT TFHT

Profit before income tax % BT 5 4 BD&E 7] 47,755 42,366
Calculated at Hong Kong profits BRSNS HREA16.5%TE

tax rate of 16.5% 7,880 6,990

Over provision in prior years T EREEEE (165) (88)

Income not subject to taxation BERBUA (1,242) (1,335)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes NRTH0F A 2 679 937

Tax losses not recognised RERHIBEE 71 48

Income tax expense FriS i & 7,223 6,552

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

11 SRER
(a) FRELXZEF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$40,532,000
(2013: HK$35,814,000) by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year of 357,027,000 (2013:
300,000,000). In determining the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 March 2014
and 2013, the 300,000,000 shares issued and allotted through
capitalisation of the share premium account arose from the listing
of the Company on 2 October 2013 have been regarded as if
these shares were in issue since 1 April 2012.

EREABFZFTEARNBRRRIES
A JE 15 3% 740,532,000 7t (20134 -
35,814,000 L) R AR FEBE BT E
B 2 NN 19 #357,027,0004% (2013
£F : 300,000,000%) - EFE E2014%5
F201343A31HILFE DR HITHNER
& InEFHEE - BBARFR20134F
10 A28 _Emim &M 5% (B BR 8 78 B AP
217 R B 3 H9300,000,0000% A% 175 2 3% 18
WZ SR R2012F4 A1 BB D B1TH
HEHE o

Year ended 31 March
HZESASIALEE

2014 2013
20144 20134
Profit attributable to owners of RARHEB ARG R (FH87T)
the Company (HK$’000) 40,532 35,814
Weighted average number of M EEREARF 2 BT
ordinary shares in issue for TR A E (T R)
basic earnings per share ('000) 357,027 300,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRRERAFGEW) 11.4 11.9

(b) Diluted earnings per share

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 and hence
the diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share.

(b) FREEZF
HREZE20144 K2013F3 A31 B IE4F
EARAWERRBEITEEESTLAR - K
SREERANEGIRERNZFER °
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12 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 12 B A RI#E AEGEIE

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt with in KAGEEAELEEBRARNQARGEHRRE
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a loss of I - 5t A E18341,000/8 7T (20134 © 6,000
HK$341,000 (2013: HK$6,000). BIT) °
13 DIVIDENDS 13 R E

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 of HK2.8 BREERRBERS FEE2014FE3A831H1E
cents per share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$11,620,000, FREREZRMNEGIR2.8BI 2 RHAKE - IR B 445
is to be proposed at the upcoming annual general meeting. These 7311,620,0008 7T © A MKW MR ZEE
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. TR 8

During the year ended 31 March 2013, a subsidiary of the Company HZE2013F3A31HILFE A rIfBATAE
declared and paid an interim dividend of HK9.0 cents per share, Bi#EG AT RS NTEREFAR0.0541L - 258
totally HK$9,000,000 to its then owners. 7/59,000,0007 7T °

14 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS - GROUP 14 REMEENRE - L KH

Year ended 31 March
BZESASIBILEE

2014 2013

20144 2013%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Profit before income tax B B 45 %0 A& A 47,755 42,366

Adjustments for: HTHSBEELAE

Depreciation (Note 15) E(ME15) 2,753 2,319

Interest expenses (Note 9) FIEFSZ (FI3E9) 6,177 9,469
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  WEMREESE

plant and equipment 9 -
Fair value gain on investment properties BEYERNTFEW(H5E16)

(Note 16) (2,320) (7,950)
Bank interest income HRITHLEWA (8) (12)
Changes in working capital: LEEREE
Loans receivable FEWE K (150,920) (30,316)
Interest receivables JE W ) 2, (4,325) 484
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FEfT3IE - 2 I H fb fE W K IE (1,574) (435)
Trade and other payables E o5 NEMERFRIE (9,024) 948
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JER R AW B AR IE (15,699) (14,328)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (A, FTEENRE (127,176) 2,545
Major non cash transaction FEHFREXSZ
An amount due to a fellow subsidiary of HK$40,010,000 as at 31 M2013F 3 A31 HMER R R B A 7 5IE
March 2013 was settled through the allotment and issue of ordinary /40,010,008 7T * BB BMERETESE
shares of HK$1 each in the capital of Hong Kong Finance Company EUVBERAR R ERAFRERAEE
Limited, Max Art Limited and Oriental Credit (Hong Kong) Limited. WEARARRAR ZREENE T L BR

L
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

15 Y% - BERRE-—FKE

Land and Office Furniture and Leasehold Motor
buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
T RETF BORE  BAREE HEWERE RE A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL AR THT T THx AL
At 31 March 2012 R201243A31H
Cost AR 52,673 286 1,065 2,722 - 56,746
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTERFE
and impairment (2,786) (207) 271) (1,515) = 4,779
Net book amount EEFE 49,887 79 794 1,207 - 51,967
Year ended 31 March 2013 #Z20135F3A31 HLLEE
Opening net book amount ~ FHIEREHE 49,887 79 794 1,207 - 51,967
Additions NE - 61 310 783 - 1,154
Transfer from investment BREMEEE([:F16)
properties (Note 16) 15,363 - - - - 15,363
Depreciation il (1,491) (45) 279) (504) - (2,319)
Closing net book amount EXREMFE 63,759 9 825 1,486 - 66,165
At 31 March 2013 R201343831H
Cost B 68,036 347 1,375 3,505 - 73,263
Accumulated depreciation  ZFHTE BRI
and impairment (4,277) (252) (650) (2,019) - (7,098)
Net book amount BEFE 63,759 95 825 1,486 - 66,165
Year ended 31 March 2014 #Z201453A31HLEE
Opening net book amount  FHIEREHE 63,759 95 825 1,486 - 66,165
Additions RE - 203 25 - 2,774 3,002
Disposal RE - - 9) - - 9)
Depreciation e (1,491) (69) (312) (552) (329) (2,753)
Closing net book amount EXREEFE 62,268 229 529 934 2,445 66,405
At 31 March 2014 201453A31H
Cost AR 68,036 550 1,392 3,505 2,774 76,257
Accumulated depreciation  ZHHTEREIE
and impairment (5,768) (321) (869) (2,57) (329) 9,852)
Net book amount REFE 62,268 229 529 934 2,445 66,405

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s land and buildings with net book
value of approximately HK$62,268,000 (2013: HK$63,759,000)
are pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings and a mortgage
borrowing granted to two subsidiaries of the Company (Note 26).

At 31 March 20183, the Group’s land and buildings with net book
value of approximately HK$48,724,000 are pledged to a bank as
security for loans granted to certain fellow subsidiaries and a related

company (Note 30).

M2014F3A31H  AEBEREFEYD
62,268,0007%8 7T (20134 : 63,759,000/ 7T )
Mt REF  EMBETFARARMEHNER
ETE)t%ﬁﬁ%%&&%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁ(BH%E‘
26) o

MN2013F3A31H » AEBEREEFELD
48,724,000 T L MIEF ERETE
TRRMB AT R —EEEARNER MK
BFIRITIEAER(KIFES0) ©
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP

16 REMEX-FKE

As at 31 March

M3H31H

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

At beginning of year F9) 70,770 78,183

Fair value gains N E W 2,320 7,950
Transfer to property, plant and equipment HAYE - BERRE(KFE15)

(Note 15) - (15,363)

At end of the year FR 73,090 70,770

The Group’s investment properties are held under leases of between
50 to 99 years in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligation for future repairs and maintenance (2013: Nil).

At 31 March 2014 and 20183, the investment properties of the Group
are pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to a
subsidiary of the Company (Note 26).

At 31 March 2013, a Group’s investment property of HK$2,720,000
is also pledged to a bank as security for loans granted to certain
fellow subsidiaries and a related company (Note 30).

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by the independent professional valuer, Asset Appraisal
Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31 March 2014 and 2013. The fair value gains are included
in “fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The recurring fair value measurements for investment properties are
included in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer. There were no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

80 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited #HFEEE%£EERAT

REFBNREDETIBRBEZBEAN—HN
TH0EQFMMELIFA °

MR2014F3A31H » REBIES KKK
BERRSNABEDTHER(20134F -
) o

R2014F K2013%F3HA31H » AEERIKE
VMEBRE TAREH—MEKERRRIRST
BRI FER1T (FI5E26) °

M2013F3A31H A& E?2,720,0007 7T HY
KREWME NERBETFTETRREMBARKL
—M BB AR ERMIEE FRITIEAER
(H#E30) °

REBKREMERBYEEGHEMPHESL
ETEREMERARETEILGEE  UET
REYER2014F K2013F3A31H Z AF
B RPEKSFAGEEERARNERY
WEWE 2 N FERGE A -

REME 2R FUE RV EFEFAEZ AR
FEER AEENBRENEHNIBERNE
BMEKRERZE  BRRAFESHE
BAREH -FR - F-—R F_ANE=
A T B A
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP (Continued) 16 REYE—FKEB (&
Valuation techniques 151875 %
The valuation of investment properties was determined by using KWEMENGHEFERHEELEA(FE ZREEK
the sale comparison method approach (Level 2 approach). Sales EVETE o MR RMENESEE SR
prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted (PlanmEBRE)NEZZELFE - WHERS
for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most AR EREANRABE AT T HRER -
significant input into this valuation approach is price per square foot.
17 SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 17 B AT —&AF
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETIRE » KA 260,849 -
Amount due from a subsidiary JE UG B B A B FR IR 107,433 =
Total At 368,282 -
Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and is not FEUFT B AR IEAEEKE 2B RBAR
repayable within 12 months from the end of the reporting period. The MEBRBI12E P8 NER - ZEBRIENB
balance represents equity funding for the subsidiary and is measured RAIZBRAEE  WIREARRBIZEN B
in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for investment RAZEFTHRTE - BB RRIRIELZ
in a subsidiary. The carrying amount of an amount due from a IREENAABITEE ©

subsidiary is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Amount due to a subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and was ERMBARNEAEEKE 2B RIEEX
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of an amount due from a B8 - BB AR RIAZEEES T
subsidiary is denominated in Hong Kong dollar. (E
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17 SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (Continued)

The following is a list of subsidiaries:

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity  Principal activities

17 B AR —&X2QF (&)

AT BB RRZIK

Particulars of issued

Group’s equity

Name MR LB R and place of operation share capital interest
% EEERER TEXBREEHY BRITRAFE rEBZER
2014 2013
2014F  2013%F
HKF Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 10,000 shares of 100% N/A
Limited liability in Hong Kong US$1 each with no
company par value
EBREUHBERRE  REBREER 10,000/ FMR1%ET TEA
) EEER D
Asia Ford Investment Limited Hong Kong Property 10,000 shares of 100% N/A
Limited liability investment holding HK$1 each
company in Hong Kong
BEREBRLF ERBRAF REBMEREER 10,000/ &1 & TR IR TEA
Charterfame Investment Limited Hong Kong Property 10,000 shares of 100% N/A
Limited liability investment holding HK$1 each
company in Hong Kong
HEREBRRT ERBRAF REBMEREER 10,000 & &1 B THIR TEA
Hong Kong Finance Hong Kong Money lending 100,000,000 shares 100% N/A
Company Limited Limited liability business of providing of HK$1 each
company property mortgage
loans in Hong Kong
EREEVBERAA ERBRAF REBREMERBER 100,000,000/ &1 T TEA
HREXES ol ah)
Max Art Limited Hong Kong Advertising agency 10,000 shares of 100% N/A
Limited liability in Hong Kong HK$1 each
company
HEBRAF ERBRAF REBREERE 10,000 & &1 & AR TEA
Oriental Credit (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Inactive 10,000 shares of 100% N/A
Limited Limited liability HK$1 each
company
RAGEVBERAA ERBRAF Tmex 10,000/ &1 & AR TEA
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

18 REFETHERMIA

Group rEH
Loans and receivables
BER R ERRIE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT THT
Assets BE
Loans receivable fEWE X 467,708 316,788
Interest receivables JE YR B 10,640 6,315
Deposits and other receivables e & H i fE Y I8 640 444
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 863 2,551
Total a&t 479,851 326,098
Other financial liabilities
at amortised cost
12 48 85 B A 51 BR BN
Hihs@mEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT TFHBT
Liabilities af&
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E bR FIE 2,285 11,405
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FEfT R Z M B A R F IR 39,000 15,699
Bank borrowings RITIEN 179,136 183,838
Total BE 220,421 210,942
Company VNN
Loans and receivables
Bk ERIE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$°000 HK$’000
FH&xT T
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 15 -
Total &5t 15 —
Other financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBERATIENEMESRERE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Liabilities afE
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAHB B A &) Z I8 = 6
Total &5t - 6
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities PREERERBEZREEREA R TEM
approximate to their fair values. o
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19 LOANS RECEIVABLE - GROUP 19 ERER-F£E

As at 31 March

84

M3A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Loans receivable e B 467,708 316,788
Less: non-current portion A IEmEE S (33,143) (16,653)
Current portion TEENEL D 434,565 300,135

The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans in Hong Kong, are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Loans receivable are secured by collaterals provided by customers,
bear interest and are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the
Group’s customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of
the reporting dates is the carrying value of the receivables mentioned
above.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, all of the loans receivable are neither
past due nor impaired.

A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the reporting
periods, based on the maturity date is as follows:

AEBEREERKENBEREMERIBER
R RERS - WABTTAHE -

W E AT P RREREH mERER - 5
BYREAKEREFZENETHRAE
B - NEBRESAHMEBNSEAEERR -
A £ EMGIRE R BRE (R

R2014F K2013%F3HA31H * MARKERK
HRBEAIARRE o

REBZHA - BRERNREBROBIHIE
AT

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Current BNER 434,565 300,135
2 to 5 years —ERF 9,971 13,290
Over 5 years HFUE 23,172 3,363
467,708 316,788

The credit quality of loans receivable that are neither past due nor
impaired has been assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited E#&EE&£EERALA

ABRTARENERESNEEERTS
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20 INTEREST RECEIVABLES - GROUP

20 BEUHFIS — A EH

As at 31 March

M3H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&ET TET
Interest receivables FEU T B, 10,640 6,315

The Group’s interest receivables, which arises from the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans in Hong Kong,
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Interest receivables are secured by collaterals provided by customers
and repayable with fixed terms agreed with the Group’s customers.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting dates
is the carrying value of the receivables.

As at 31 March 2014, interest receivables of HK$6,605,000 (2013:
HK$3,095,000) are past due but not impaired. These related to a
number of third party customers for whom there was no history of
default. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment on individual loans and
their respective interest receivables is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The ageing analysis of interest receivables by past due date is as
follows:

AEEZBUMNEXRERBBREDERE
ERMBEE - SABTTEHE ©

FEM N SR PIREH M ERRESER - X
REAEEEXEFPZEENEEHNRAEE - 1
ZHERHMEEBNEAEERR - BEK
AR AREE ©

M201443 A31 H » 6,605,000 7T (2013
£ : 3,095,000 7T ) HEWH S - E@ERE
MARRE - ZERIBS R Z A BELOLTHN
FZFRFE - BEBAELR ANEEE=
WHEEANRE  BESKNIGE A28 E -
WARREERABEARENERREL B
K B FE MR EET R E R o

REEHHEE - BEFEMREDITAT

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHxT T
0 - 30 days 0-30K 2,705 1,937
31 - 60 days 31-60K 2,627 262
Over 60 days HBiB60X 1,273 896
6,605 3,095
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21 EAME - BEREMEBKE - &
%8

21 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Deposits e 594 398
Prepayments AT FHIE 1,715 337
Others Hih 46 46
2,355 781

The Group’s other receivables and deposits are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

All deposits are neither past due nor impaired.

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

86

AEEE MR FIRRIZS LB TTAHE

PR & R @ B IR A
2 BERKREEEY

Group AEH
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash at bank RITIRE 863 2,551
Company AAT
As at 31 March
MA3A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT T
Cash at bank RITIRE 15 -

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited E#&EE&£EERALA
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23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 A

Authorised share capital SETE BR 2N
Equivalent
Nominal value nominal value
Number of of ordinary of ordinary
ordinary shares shares shares
ZiER ZER EEREE
2 H EREE EREE
HKS HK$
HIT ABIT

At 6 February 2013 M2013F2A6H (FEfAL

(Date of incorporation), HH§) - 201343A31A K

31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 2013F4 A 1H 38,000,000 0.01 380,000
Increase in authorised share capital A& R AEE AN 9,962,000,000 0.01 99,620,000
At 31March 2014 R2014%F3H31H 10,000,000,000 0.01 100,000,000
Issued share capital BRITRA

Number of
issued shares Amount
ERTRHHE Kok
HK$’000
FHET
At 6 February 2013 7201352 A6 R (A A H)

(date of incorporation) (Note (a)) (Ki=E(@)) 1 =
Allotted and issued (Notes (a), (b)) B i 8 M 31T (FY5E(a) * (b)) 999,999 =
At 31 March 2013 20133 H31H 1,000,000 -
Issue of new shares (Note (b)) BT (M 5E(D)) 1,000,000 20
Capitalisation of shares (Note (c)) A& 9 B A1k (FfsE(c)) 298,000,000 2,980
Issue of new shares pursuant to IR IEAR 10 B & 31T 3T AR (T 3E(d))

the share offer (Note (d)) 115,000,000 1,150
At 31 March 2014 #A2014%3H31H 415,000,000 4,150
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23 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 February
2013 with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000, divided into
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On incorporation date, 1 nil-paid
share was issued to Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, which, on
the same date, transferred the said 1 share to Tin Ching Holdings. On
12 March 2013, 999,999 new shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and
issued at nil paid to Tin Ching Holdings.

On 9 September 2013, the Company acquired the entire equity interest in
HKF Overseas Limited by (a) issuing and allotting 1,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.01 each to Tin Ching Holdings credited as fully paid; and (b)
crediting as fully paid at par the 1,000,000 nil-paid shares, as mentioned
above, to Tin Ching Holdings.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution passed on 4 September
2013, an aggregate of 298,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company were allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par, by way
of capitalisation of the sum of HK$2,980,000 from the share premium
account, to the then existing shareholders of the Company, whose
names appeared in the register of the Company on 4 September 2013,
in proportion to their respective shareholdings, such allotment and
capitalisation were conditional on the share premium account being
credited as a result of the issue of new shares to the public in connection
with the Company'’s initial public offering as detailed in (d) below. Upon
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on 2 October
2018, 298,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued under the
capitalisation issue.

In connection with the Company’s initial public offering, 115,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$1.03 per share for
a total cash consideration, before listing expenses, of HK$118,450,000,
resulting in an increase in the issued share capital of the Company by
HK$1,150,000 and the share premium by HK$117,300,000.

24 RESERVES
(a) Group

88

The amount of the Group’s reserve and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity on page 47 of the financial
statements.

The Group’s capital reserve represents the excess of the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s
share issued in exchange therefor.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited E#&EE&£EERALA

23 A (&)
Wit -

(@)

ARABR2013F2A6BEHREH#HS =Tt
Sz HEFE R A A 380,000 7T 0 9 A
38,000,000 & & IR E H0.01 & T8I iR 0 ©
RIAMBC B E - 1 IRARMRKIR D AT T
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited * i1
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited 7]
At bt IRAR D8 E T KRR IEAR - M20134F
3A12H + 999,999/% &R E{E0.018 7T 2 %1
AP AR B R T A B 8 R BT T RBIEAR -

MR2013F 9 A9 H AR a U M HKF
Overseas Limitedz 22zt - IEH X B(a)
217 & B % 1,000,000 ABRYI{ES R 2 &%
EECOIBIT RN FRREER - Rb)A
EXCPrat - 1T T RS ER 2 1,000,0000% K
B - REBEARYASE -

BIE2013FOA4A BB RFRHRE  BiR
A% 17 4 18 BR & AN {E£2,980,000/8 7T 2 7 -
AN A4 $£298,000,0000% F I EIEO.0178 7T
2B LIEAEARIBHRZ AR &
BE 8 RHELLPI - Bi3E KX 21T 201399 A
ABEZHANBIREEM 2 ARNRERFIRER
R mMABREREREUARRBIREERAA
FMEERARATETHRG M<K RER
SREHER(FEBR T X)) BATIR ° FA
NEIEAHA2013FE10 A2 B B FT 1% -
BIEE AN BT FIABTT 2 S REE0.01E T
B D 85 B 298,000,000/ °

BETERAARBES « KN2QaA BT
115,000,000 % & % E (£ 0.0178 7T 2 B 1 -
EEE1.0358 70 IR EWBHAZAH
2B /A118,450,00008 T - BHMAQTE
ZETRY AAE AN 1,150,000 7T I 2 A B ) % 8
117,300,000/ 7T, ©

24 f#E
(a) X&H

AEERAFEREFZREREED S
HEJNRUBEMRFATEZREREE
EE

AEEZBEAREBERARR RN LW
Al RIBEAKBZHB AR RN 2@
B8 H AR R 37T AR ER bt B 2 B
MEEZ#EE -
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24 RESERVES (Continued)

24 fRfE &)

(b) Company (b) 2 7]
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
vyt &N RetEE &t
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
M aE THERT TET THERT THET
Balance at 1 April 2013 R2013F4 A1 2 &84 - - (6) 6)
Total comprehensive income FAEERALBLE
for the year (Note 12) (MizE12) = = (341) (341)
Transactions with owners HEER ANR S
Arising from Reorganisation EHEE - 260,849 - 260,849
Issue of new shares BITHR 23(b) = (20) = (20)
Capitalisation of shares -4 23(c) (2,980) - - (2,980)
Issue of new shares BITHR 23(d) 117,300 = = 117,300
Listing expenses charged REgpaENR EmRAX
to share premium (10,655) - - (10,655)
Balance at 31 March 2014 N2014F3A31 H 2 &8k 108,665 260,829 (347) 364,147
Representing K&
Reserves &1 103,665 260,829 (11,967) 352,527
Proposed final dividend BEEAHRE - - 11,620 11,620
Balance at 31 March 2014 R201453831 A 2 &tk 108,665 260,829 (347) 364,147
Balance at 1 April 2012 R20125F4 A1 B 2 #8h = = = =
Total comprehensive income FAEEBRALBE
for the year (Note 12) (MtzE12) = = (6) (6)
Balance at 31 March 2013 R2013F3 H31H « 4tk = - (6) 6)
Representing R&
Reserves 1 = = (6) (6)
Balance at 31 March 2013 A2013F3 H31H 2 4k = - (6) (6)

The Company’s capital reserve represents the excess of the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
pursuant to the Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
share, over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued in
exchange therefor.

Under Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, a company may make
distributions to its shareholders out of the capital reserves in certain
circumstances.

ARB ZBAFBEERARB RN LA
ARERBEEARBEZMBAREEFELZ
NP EHR AR R BT ARER B i ) 2 AR
DEEZHEE -

RERESERERRNE  REIAANETHERLT
BERAFERERREHDIR
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP 25 ESRHMEBEMNRIE -FAKEE
As at 31 March
R3A31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Rental deposits received Bl eEe 440 390
Dividend payable (Note 13) JERT AR B (P FE13) = 9,000
Other payables and accrued charges E R SR E R B AT 2 2,589 2,663
3,029 12,053
The Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in Hong AEEE S REMENKIBABTTE -
Kong dollar.
26 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP 26 IRITERAR—FKEH
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BRI
31 March
3H31H
2014 2013
20145 2013%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Bank loans RITER 146,281 147,559
Bank overdrafts WITEYL 32,855 36,279
Total bank borrowings IRITIE N AREE 179,136 183,838
The weighted average effective interest rate on bank loans and bank HZE2014FE3HA31BIEEE @ $RITEFZ LR
overdrafts during the year ended 31 March 2014 is 3.1% (2013: TEITHMEEEEREMNE A£3.1% (2013
3.8%) per annum. F:3.8%) °
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are REBIRITER ZREEBITEHE »

denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
s ey

26 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP (Continued) 26 SRITER—AEE (&)
As at 31 March 2014, the bank loans and overdrafts utilised by the M2014%3R31H » AEBEFEANRITE
Group amounting to HK$179,136,000 were secured by the following: i 2179,136,00058 7T ¢ A MBI & 1B
TR -

() investment properties held by the Group amounting to () AEBEHHHEEA73,090,000 7T H
HK$73,090,000 (Note 16); HEYZE(WE16)

(i) land and buildings held by the Group with net book value of (i) AEE AR REFE /62,268,000
HK$62,268,000 (Note 15); and TOH 0 M T (FRE15) + &

(i) corporate guarantee of the Company. (i) ANRAAIBFEELR ©

As at 31 March 2013, the bank loans and overdrafts utilised by the MR2013F3A31H ' AEBEFERAMETE

Group amounted to HK$183,838,000 were secured by the following: M 3FE ¥ 5183,838,00008 7T © A NFIFTE

TR -

() investment properties held by the Group amounted to () AEBEFFHSEAT70,770,0007% 7T K
HK$70,770,000 (Note 16); TEWE(FEE16)

(i) land and buildings held by the Group with net book value of (i) ANEE A8 RE 8 563,759,000%
HK$63,759,000 (Note 15); TCH) T3 RAEF (FEE15)

(i) certain properties held by the fellow subsidiaries of the Group; (i) AEBRRWBATFENE T

(iv) certain properties held by a director of the Company; (iv) ARR—RESFHANE TWE

(v) certain property held by a relative of a director of the Company; v) RAAF—RESHBRAENG THME

(vi) personal guarantees from the directors of the subsidiaries of the vi)y REBHBRAREZESZAEAEZRHE
Group (Note 29 (b)(ii); and 29(b)(ii)) &

(vii) corporate guarantee from a fellow subsidiary (Note 29 (b)(ii)). (vi) RE—ERRNE QR D ZEERHE

29(b)(ii)) °
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B AR MY EE

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES - GROUP 27 EEEFEHEE - KEEH
The analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows: BLERBEENSTAT :
31 March
3H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx FET
To be recovered after more than 12 months R121E A& U El 4,055 3,806
To be recovered within 12 months H121E A ik [e - 26
Total deferred tax liabilities RIERIEB EEE 4,055 3,832
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as BLEFSHRE MBEBEFHOT -
follows:
31 March
3H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
At beginning of the year F7) 3,832 3,915
Recognised/(derecognised) in the PERE 2 EWARARER,
consolidated statement of (BUB®ERR) (MFE10)
comprehensive income (Note 10) 223 (83)
At end of the year FR 4,055 3,832
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BA RS SR M

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES - GROUP 27 EIEFfiERAE —&~£H &)

(Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

EEFAHAERABREERNEDH (&
= IR — i mDEAER RS ) 10T ¢

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IR IE TR

HK$’000

FTHERT

At 1 April 2012 201264 H18 3,915

Credited to the consolidated statement of STAGZAZEBAKRAMIEEI0)

comprehensive income (Note 10) (83)

At 31 March 2013 20133 H31H 3,832

At 1 April 2013 M2013F4H1H 3,832
Charged to the consolidated statement of Mira 2EBAKRATR (KEE10)

comprehensive income (Note 10) 223

At 31 March 2014 A2014%3H31H 4,055

No deferred tax assets had been recognised in respect of the unused
tax losses of subsidiaries, as it was uncertain whether sufficient
taxable profits would be available to allow utilisation of the carried

forward tax losses.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets of HK$202,000 (2013: HK$467,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to HK$1,225,000 (2013: HK$2,830,000) that can be
carried forward indefinitely against future taxable income.

I R A B I8 2 B ) K Bh A A5 28 5 1B i SRR AT
MREE ARWTHESTEBENS A
EREEREREN TR ERTUEH

MR2014F3A31H ' sL&5A1,225,0007 7T
(20134 :2,830,00078 7T ) Ky 0] £E R B 448 )L
HEEARRERFRANRBEEREMS + A%
] 3 A i SR R IR IE £ IR & B 5202,0007 7T
(20134 : 467,000/87T) °
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B AR MY EE

28 COMMITMENTS - GROUP

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties to independent third
parties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
lease term ranges from 1 to 3 years, and the lease agreements are
renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of the investment properties are as
follows:

28 AE-AKH

REHERE - FEBESLHBEA

AEERBETAIHENE2HERZTER
EM¥EHETBLE=7 - HEHRR/1ES
Fo-HERBUREHERTRTSESE

REBEREMER 2 T AIREHKEEL - B
ARKEESLREOT :

31 March
M3H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Not later than one year —FR 1,530 1,359

The Company did not have any significant commitments at 31 March
2014 (2013: Nil).

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - GROUP

94

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control or common significant influence.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried
out between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course
of business during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, and
balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 March 2014
and 2018.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited E#&EE&£EERALA

R2014F3 8318 @ AR 7)1 £ T o] & K&
JE(20134F « &) o

HBAIXS -A5E

Rt h e B RN IR m — A B R — K
MEEEERRITEEAFENNAL - F
HKAZHREARAEAFZENALTIKRERE
AR

TSR AN £ B B A B RS 5 MBI E 2014 F K
2013F3H31HIEFE AR XBBRIEPEST
MEARS » WEFR2014% & 201343 531
BB S R 5% -



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SR M

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - GROUP (Continued) 29 BB AR5 —AEEB(#&)

(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EXEHAXE
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this financial statements, the Kﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ DT HEEE SN - A
following significant transactions were undertaken by the Group %IE‘EEE@E@ ETHNEARRSIT

with related parties:

Year ended 31 March
BZESHASIHILEE

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT
Interest expenses paid to a fellow ﬁ%lﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
subsidiary Tin Ching Industrial X a%ﬁﬂﬁ alz
Company Limited %IJ%E%SE 1,020 2,837
Interest expenses on an amount due to a fellow subsidiary were EHENRERNE R RIBENFEREZ -
charged at weighted average effective interest rate of 4.2% TR MEFHERFEFEL42% (20134 -
(2013: 4.9%) per annum. 4.9% ) YZHR °
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (b) BEEGHE 5 K B IEAZ B
(i) Amount due to a fellow subsidiary () ERERKMBARRE
Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited, a fellow subsidiary, ARMBARRABEXEBRARM
provided the Group with a loan facility with a limit of AEERHERBE - R20145F3
HK$80,000,000 (2013: Nil), of which the Group utilised an A 31H ' [R % 480,000,000 7T
amount of HK$39,000,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil). (20134 : &) - HPFAEEEHH
39,000,000/ 7T (2013%F : &) -
The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at the rate which ERNFIBAEER REELEHRIRE
is mutually agreed by both parties at weighted average HEERNMETFEERENZEL42%
effective interest rate of 4.2% (2013: 4.9%) per annum on (20134 : 4.9%)&T 8 » RIZERK(E
the outstanding amount, and repayable on demand. The B oENEARMBRARFRIBZKE
carrying amount of the amount due to a fellow subsidiary is BABTTEE ©

denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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B AR MY EE

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - GROUP (Continued) 29 BB AR5 —AEB(#&)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEEH T B R IBEBAEER (/E)
(ii) Guarantees from related parties (i) BAEGFRAMWIER
As at 31 March 2013, the bank borrowings amounted to MN2013%FE3A31H » RITHEF A
HK$183,838,000 were secured by the personal guarantees 183,838,000/ 7T * AA A AIME A
from the directors of subsidiaries of the Company, as well as BEENEAERAN —BER R
a corporate guarantee from a fellow subsidiary (Note 26). BATIREA D EEFEERE (K
26) °
(iii) Guarantees to related parties (iii) mEAEE S RENER
As at 31 March 2014, the Group has no contingent liabilities. MR2014F3H31H » A& E I sk
RBfE -
As at 31 March 2013, the Group has contingent liabilities 2013 3A31H » AEERK T
in respect of the corporate guarantee and the pledge of ETREMBAR R —H@EEA
the Group’s investment property (Note 16) and land and (RRAI—REENWLABEESE)
buildings (Note 15) as security for loans granted to certain MEXMREENCEERLAER
fellow subsidiaries and a related company, of which the B (H3E16) B 1 R &5 (B
daughter of a director of the Company is the director (Note 5 AR E S R B & (M5
30). 30) °
(c) Key management compensation (c) TEEENSHKH

Year ended 31 March
BZESASIBILEE

2014 2013

20145 2013%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Salaries and bonus e Rt 5,674 4,267

Other benefits H b & F| 840 840

Pension costs — defined contribution plans ER& A — R E kst 2 90 87

6,604 5,194

30 CONTINGENCIES 30 HAREH

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has no contingent liabilities. MR2014F3A31H » AEBIESLREE -
As at 31 March 2013, the Group has contingent liabilities in respect M201343H31H - *EEAETETRZR
of the corporate guarantee and the pledge of the Group’s investment MEAR R —FHEEAFTNERMEHLN
property (Note 16) and buildings (Note 15) as security for loans PEEREAEEIREDE (HitE16) RiE
granted to certain fellow subsidiaries and a related company (Note F(MaE15) ERMAEIA AR (MEE29(0)
29(b)(iii)). The aggregate amounts of loans utilised as at 31 March (iii)) - A2013F3A31H  CHRAMNERERE

2013 was HK$26,713,000. 526,713,000/ 7T °

96 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited #HEEE%£EERAT



Schedule of Investment Properties

BREWFIR

As at 31 March 2014 201443 A318

Property Use

ES iRz

Remaining
lease terms

g M

Percentage of
interest
attributable

to our Company
RAREMNL
ERED

1. Unit No. 2 on Godown
7th Floor, BB
Sunray Industrial Centre,

No. 610 Cha Kwo Ling Road,
Kowloon

JLBE

RIREEIEO6I105%

AR T A

71

—
2%

2 Office 5 on 34th Floor, Office
Tower Two, PN
Lippo Centre,
No. 89 Queensway,
Hong Kong
E
o pElciehi
BEFROZRE
B4EEHEP A E

3. Flat E on 10/F of Block 3 Residential
(Orchid Court), *=
New Town Plaza (Phase lll),

Nos. 2-8 Sha Tin Centre Street,
Shatin,

New Territories

R

W H

Y H EE72-85%

MW ES(E=H)

SR (EHA)

101 BE=

4, Unit No. 6A on Office
25th Floor, i /NE
Tower Two,

Lippo Centre,
No. 89 Queensway,

Hong Kong

BB

8 B895%
G

T

2512

BAZE

Medium term

T H

Medium term

T H

Medium term

T H

Medium term

T H

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Financial Summary

BBHME

RESULTS -
2014 2013 2012 2011
20145 20134 20124 20114
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT FHETT FHEIT FHET
Revenue 25 81,209 66,420 57,166 34,749

Profit and total comprehensive FiN/NEIEZ YNl
income for the year attributable  EE &5 &

to owners of the Company 2HEW AL 40,532 35,814 33,822 31,138
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE

2014 2013 2012 2011

20145 20134 20124 20114

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FHET FHET FHET

Total assets WEE 621,061 463,370 429,248 368,529

Total liabilities BEE 227,361 217,997 250,699 273,812

Total equity g 393,700 245,373 178,549 94,717
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In this annual report, unless or otherwise further expressed, the following RAFHRA - BRIEXNEZE R BTE © NAEZEES

expressions have the following meanings:

“Board”

[Exg]

“CG Code”

[RERFA

“Company’’ or “our Company”

NG

“Director(s)”

-3

“GEM”
[ RIZAR J

“Group”, “our Group

[ARE I [ &AM

“HK$”
%5

“HKICPA”

[BERETMAE]

“HK Finance”

[EREE]

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“Listing Date”
[Em B

“Listing Rules
[EmRA

“Model Code”
=25

we”,

our” or “us

AN

the board of Directors

E=xg

“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
FHRAIK SRt OEE 2 [REBARTRREEE RS ]

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited (B8 Z E%£E AR 2 7)), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

SR EEEEARLAR  —HRASHSTMAINERAE - HRHAE
RATER ETH

the director(s) of our Company

ARAES

the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
Bk 32 PN ZE AR

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRA R EM B R E

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EBEEEBET

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BRGNS

Hong Kong Finance Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

BEREEMBBERAT  —RARBEBETMALOERAR - RAARREESR
BB AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China
hEE A RHMBEEBRERITEHR

2 October 2013, being the first date when the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange
2013F10H2R » BIRMREE R ERER Lz B H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B PE S E AR Rl
“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
HN ERAP ST [ ERBETAESTETESXHNEESTA
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“Prospectus”
[HERER]

“SFO”
[ 3% % & A& R

“Shareholder(s)”
[BR3R

“Shares”

[ &1 ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 P

“Tin Ching Holdings”
[RBER]

“Tin Ching Industrial”
[RBREX]

the prospectus of our Company dated 17 September 2013 in relation to the
listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange
AARRZZE—=ZFhLATELRTAENBRERER - RBBER RO
i)

Securities and Future Ordinance
BH N EFEED)

the shareholders of our Company
NN} 3

the shares of our Company
PN S

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARHMERRAR]

Tin Ching Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, owned as to 50% by each of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan
Kwong Yin William, and a controlling Shareholder of our Company
RBERARRR - —HAREBRLRSTMAZAANTE - AREEEER
BREBEEREAL0NER @+ WAARFHIERARIR

Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and owed as to 100% interest by Tin Ching Holdings
RBBEFARAGF - —HREBFMEHRE - ARBEREF100%#E 5
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